
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




     October 21, 22, 23, 2014                       45 
 


NORTH ROSE-WOLCOTT CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 


 OCTOBER 21, 22, 23, 2014 5:30 PM      DOCKERS SEAFOOD AND GRILLE 
 


 
PRESENT: Judi Buckalew, John Boogaard, Lucinda Collier, Edward Magin, Andrew 


Mathes, Danny Snyder, Izetta Younglove 
 


The Board of Education conducted interviews of Superintendent of 
School Candidates during dinner with finalists on the evenings of 
October 21, 22 and 23rd at Dockers Seafood and Grille, 6483 Catchpole 
Shore Rd., North Rose, New York.   
 
Stephan Vigliotti was interviewed on October 21, 2014. 
Eugene Hoskins was interviewed on October 22, 2014 
Brian Pulvino was interviewed on October 23, 2014. 
 
No resolutions were presented for discussion or vote on at these 
meetings. 
 
 
 
 


        __________________________________________________ 
        Clerk, Board of Education 
 








     October 29, 2014                       46 
 


NORTH ROSE-WOLCOTT CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 


 OCTOBER 29, 2014 5:30 PM      ROOM 210 OF THE HIGH SCHOOL 
 


 
PRESENT: Judi Buckalew, John Boogaard, Lucinda Collier, Edward Magin, Andrew 


Mathes, Danny Snyder, Izetta Younglove 
 


 Scott Bischoping, Superintendent, Wayne Finger-Lakes BOCES, Marla 
Iverson, Asst. Superintendent for School Improvement, Wayne Finger-
Lakes BOCES, Quinn  Morris, Director of Human Resources, Wayne 
Finger-Lakes BOCES 


 
CALL TO ORDER President, Edward Magin called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM and led 


the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 


1.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA Izetta Younglove moved and Danny Snyder seconded the following 
motion.  It passed with a unanimous vote. J. Boogaard, J. Buckalew, L. 
Collier, E. Magin, A. Mathes, D. Snyder, I. Younglove voted yes. 


 
 Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the 


Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law, approves the 
agenda of October 28, 2014 


 
1b. EXECUTIVE SESSION Judi Buckalew and John Boogaard seconded the following motion.  It 


passed with a unanimous vote. J. Boogaard, J. Buckalew, L. Collier, E. 
Magin, A. Mathes, D. Snyder, I. Younglove voted yes. 


 
 Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the 


Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law approves 
Executive Session at 7:05 PM for the specific purpose of discussing 
candidates for the position of Superintendent of Schools 


 
REGULAR SESSION The meeting returned to regular session at _______ PM. 
 
ADJOURNMENT Andrew Mathes and Izetta Younglove seconded the following motion.  It 


passed with a unanimous vote. J. Boogaard, J. Buckalew, L. Collier, E. 
Magin, A. Mathes, D. Snyder, I. Younglove voted yes. 


 
 Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the 


Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law, approves the 
adjournment of the meeting at _________ PM. 


 
 
 
 
     ___________________________________________________ 
     Clerk of the Board of Education  
 
 
 





























































1 


 


 
 


North Rose-Wolcott Central 
School District 


 
Professional Development Plan 


2014-15 
 


 


 


COUGARS 
 


 







2 


 


 


School District Professional Development Plan 


 


STATEMENT OF ASSURANCES 


 


The Superintendent certifies that: 


 


 Planning, implementation, and evaluation of the professional development plan were conducted by 
a professional development team (Curriculum and Staff Development Council) that included 
teachers, administrators, and others identified in the plan. 


 The plan focuses on improving student performance and teacher practice as identified through data 
analysis. 


    The plan describes professional development that: 


• is aligned with state content and student performance standards; 
• is articulated within and across grade levels; 
• is continuous and sustained; 
• indicates how classroom instruction and teacher practice will be improved and assessed; 
• indicates how each teacher in the district will participate; and 
• is structured to allow teachers with a professional certificate reasonable opportunity to 


complete at least 175 hours of professional development every five years. 
 


 The plan indicates an evaluation of the effectiveness of the professional development and a 
mechanism to adjust activities based upon the evaluation. 


    The plan or the annual update to the plan was adopted at a public meeting by the Board of Education. 


 


 


 


________________________________ 


         Henry Hann 


         Superintendent of Schools 







3 


 


 


 


TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 


 


Professional Development Beliefs        4 


Professional Development Definition & Critical Attributes     5 


Professional Development Foundational Structures      6 


Meeting NYS Requirements for Professional Development     8 


Needs Analysis           9 


Objectives and Strategies         10 


Professional Development Evaluation        11 


Professional Development Focus for 2014-15       13 


NYS Standards for Professional Development       14 


Five Levels of Professional Development Evaluation      15 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







4 


 


NORTH ROSE-WOLCOTT CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 


COMPREHENSIVE PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 


2014-2015 


 


 


 


  


 Teachers matter. Quality instruction has the largest influence on student achievement. 
 It is the obligation of the school community to create safe and caring learning 


environments and engage students in relevant, reachable, quality work experiences that 
challenge them to learn more, at higher levels with a deeper understanding (rigor). 


 The work of educators is demanding and complex. Educators must have an adaptive style 
in order to meet the variety of challenges and needs of NRW students. 


 Teachers and administrators are not expected to do this work in isolation. Both need the 
support of collegial learning teams that problem solve and learn together. 


 Leaders matter: 
 Their clarity, their intentionality, what they believe, think, and communicate make a 


significant difference in increasing student achievement. 
 They are primary architects of embedded professional development through the 


development of the School Improvement Plan (SIP). 
 The most powerful professional development is teacher-to-teacher learning that happens 


as close to the work with students in classrooms as possible. 
 Coaching and well-functioning collaborative teams are powerful tools to accomplish 


ongoing, meaningful professional learning. 
 Workshops, courses, conferences, and other outside resources are additional supports to 


ongoing professional learning. 
 Measuring and assessing professional learning is essential to its design, delivery, and 


ongoing adjustment, in order to be most responsive to staff and student learning. 
 Budgeting at both the District and building level is required to create and sustain 


ongoing, powerful professional development. 
 


 


 


 


 


 


Professional Development:  Beliefs 







5 


 


 


 


 


 High levels of student achievement require well-trained staff with high expectations for 
students and a passion for providing every student with a caring and supportive learning 
environment. High standards of professional conduct are also required. Professional 
development is a critical component of the overall strategy to encourage and reinforce 
these professional expectations. 


 The Office of Curriculum and Instruction provides leadership, assistance, and support for 
the ongoing professional growth required to impact student learning by: 
 Surrounding teachers and administrators with structures of support that encourage 


ongoing professional learning, innovation, action research, and the collegial 
sharing of new ideas and best practices. 


 Engaging teachers and administrators in professional learning that is standards-
focused, intellectually rigorous, part of their daily work, and continuous. 


 Supporting principals and teachers to use a variety of data to determine the focus 
of their professional learning. 


 Deepening teachers’ repertoire of research-based instructional skills and 
strategies, content knowledge, knowledge of CCLS, and knowledge of resources. 


 Supporting the work of small teams of teachers using a data dialogue process, 
who meet regularly to look at student data including student work, plan lessons, 
and assist in progress monitoring and problem-solving. 


 Providing teachers with the classroom assessment skills that allow them to 
regularly monitor gains in student learning resulting from improved classroom 
practices. 


 Connecting teachers to teachers within and beyond their schools and to outside 
sources of knowledge and skill. 


 


 


 


 


 


 Designed to positively impact student learning 
 Job-embedded 
 Job-specific 
 High-quality 
 Stimulus for continuous improvement for all professionals, fostering support for APPR 
 Research-based 
 Evaluated for impact on student achievement 


Professional Development:  Critical Attributes 


Professional Development:  Definition 







6 


 


 


 


 


 


Student Learning 


 Student learning informs all the work of school learning teams, school leadership teams, 
and District leadership teams.  The District Mission, Vision, and Priorities are based on 
meeting the learning needs of our students.  The ongoing development of our teachers 
and leaders is critical to ensure that these learning needs are met. 


 


School Learning Teams 


 Regular meeting times for self-managing, leader-supported teams to prepare and improve 
instruction are a primary vehicle for ongoing professional development. Everyone 
involved learns by doing work that is critical to student success. 


 School learning teams could be comprised of colleagues who teach the same course, 
grade level, subject area, or are co-teaching partners, etc. It is suggested they meet 
regularly to create instructional plans and identify strategies on the basis of results – from 
their observations and formative assessments. These learning teams set measurable, time-
bound improvement goals and target areas of greatest need. Their goals are directly 
linked to the School Improvement Plan (SIP). 


 Leaders equip and support teams at every level to solve problems and generate the “small 
wins” that mark and promote continuous improvement.  This level of teamwork is a core 
value as stated in the NRW Mission. 


 


The competencies/skills required: 


 Knowledge of effective team structures and protocols 
 Collaboration skills (clarity, committed listening, dialogue, making requests, securing    


promises, etc.) 
 Full knowledge of curriculum maps 
 Ability to develop common formative assessments 
 Use of ongoing, formative assessment to inform instruction 
 Looking at Student Work (LASW) structures and protocols 
 Data Analysis process for progress monitoring 
 Thorough knowledge of the Danielson Rubrics 


 


 


 


Professional Development Foundational Structures 







7 


 


School Leadership Team 


(Principal, APs, Instructional Coaches, Lead Teachers) 


 The primary work of school leadership is to move from being “instructional leaders” to 
“learning leaders.” This requires leaders to increase time spent with teams of teachers as 
they focus on student success as measured by ongoing, formative assessments and using 
these assessments to inform their instruction. 


 School Leadership Team member(s) meet with school learning teams on a regular basis 
to ask the questions: 


o To what extent are students learning the intended outcomes of each course? 
o What steps can I, as the leader, take to give both students and teachers the time 


and support they need to improve learning? 
o Leaders equip and support teams at every level to solve problems and generate the 


“small wins” that mark and promote continuous improvement.  This level of 
teamwork is a core value as stated in the NRW Mission. 


 


Leadership competencies/skills required: 


 Understanding that effective teamwork is essential to success 
 Knowledge of effective team structures and protocols 
 Collaboration leadership skills (clarity, committed listening, dialogue, making requests,  


securing promises, etc.) 
 Full knowledge of curriculum maps 
 Working understanding of formative assessment processes 
 Looking at Student Work (LASW) structures and protocols 
 Data Analysis for progress monitoring 


 


District Leadership Teams 


(Superintendent, Cabinet) 


District leadership provides: 


 Direction, guidance, and support in partnership with school leaders and school learning 
teams 


 Program articulation and monitoring of programs and processes 
 Curriculum map development 
 Professional development programs and support 


 


Leadership competencies/skills include: 


 Knowledge of effective team structures and protocols 
 Collaborative leadership skills (clarity, committed listening, dialogue, making requests,  







8 


 


securing promises, etc.) 
 Full knowledge of curriculum maps, district policies and procedures 
 Working understanding of formative assessment processes 
 Looking at Student Work (LASW) structures and protocols 
 Data Analysis for progress monitoring 


 


In order to sustain and support team-based, assessment-driven instructional improvement, 
Leadership Development sessions will focus on: 


 Using the same skills and strategies we are asking instructionally focused teams of 
teachers to use 


 Exploring specific behaviors and strategies that are being used to “lead the learning” and 
obtaining feedback from colleagues 


 Solving problems (avoiding dependency, acting as thinking partners to one another, using 
collaborative leadership skills) 


 Clarifying concepts essential to team-based, continuous improvement 
 Sharing short-term results, celebrating successes 
 Focusing and shaping teams so that high levels of student learning results      


 
 


 


 


 


Teachers holding a professional certificate are required to complete 175 hours of professional 
development over 5 years to maintain their certification. Hours are submitted to the State for the 
following items and are included in annual APPR submissions: 


• One-hour college credit = 15 clock hours (3 credit course = 45 clock hours) 
• Superintendent Conference Day or out-of-district conference = 6.5 clock hours (for full day) 
• Mentor = 20 hours yearly 
• Internship = 150 clock hours 
• Curriculum and Staff Development Council Membership (20 hours yearly) 
• Other acceptable clock hour activities –  
 Curriculum writing 
 Scoring state assessments 
 Workshops 
 Faculty/Department/grade level meetings (1 hour per month) 
 Prep-time for teacher-led presentation at a Superintendent’s Conference Day 


 


 


Professional Development: Meeting NYS Requirements 







9 


 


 


Data Conclusions Implications for Professional 
Development 


Multiple measures of student 
achievement data (NYS 
assessment data, District 
benchmark assessments, 
graduation rates) 


 


 


At each grade level and content 
area, we have NRW students 
who do not meet the NYS 
standards or the exit outcomes 
for each grade level and/or 
course. 


-continued work with CCLS and 
the modules; delivering quality 
first instruction  


-continued work with data-driven 
school improvement and 
instruction  


-continued work with ensuring 
curriculum maps are aligned with 
CCLS 


  


Student conduct data (PBIS data 
and behavioral referrals) 


 


At the secondary level, students 
exhibit difficulties with 
exhibiting PBIS character traits, 
and complying with the district 
code of conduct. 


-continued staff training with 
Therapeutic Crisis Intervention  


-continued PBIS training 


BEDS data  


 


Approximately 18% of teachers 
have probationary status 


-strong mentoring program for 
non-tenured teachers that focuses 
on supporting and retaining 
quality staff members 


Disaggregated data: by ethnicity, 
gender, students with disabilities, 
low SES, LEP and ESL 


Achievement gaps exist among 
ethnic, gender, and special 
education groups. The MS has 
been identified to develop a 
Local Assistance Plan to target 
students with disabilities this 
year.  


-continued work with 
differentiated instruction for 
students with disabilities 


-continued work with co-teaching 
model 


-continued work with provision 
of culturally responsive 
education  


 
 
 
 


Needs Analysis







10 


 


 
 


A. Objective: Provide professional development opportunities at all stages of the profession. 
  


     Strategies: 1. Provide a year-long induction program for new teachers (Mentoring Program) 
  2. Provide orientation and training in required district instructional programs.  
  3. Support the ongoing work of small teams of teachers who meet regularly to analyze 


their students’ data, determine instructional strategies, plan lessons, look at student work, 
and assist in ongoing problem solving. 


  4. Provide embedded, “just in time” professional development for teachers and 
paraprofessionals. 
5. Offer leadership opportunities for teachers through Teacher Leader Training, study 
group leaders, and instructional coaching. 


 


B. Objective: Provide professional development programs based on professional development 
research, theory, and best educational practices. (Appendix A, NYS PD Standards) 


  
 Strategies: 1. Use the NYS Standards for Professional Development to develop a common   
      knowledge base throughout the district.  
  2. Disseminate current research and professional information on best practices. 


3. Provide embedded, “just in time” professional development for teachers and  
    paraprofessionals. 
4. Provide professional development to teachers on the Common Core Learning    
    Standards, Data Driven Instruction and the New Teacher  
    Evaluation System (APPR) 


  3. Maintain professional libraries, including professional articles, webinars and videos. 
 


C. Objective: Provide opportunities that promote best teaching practices and improve student 
learning. 


 
 Strategies: 1. Provide support from instructional coaches. 


2. Provide opportunities to meet and learn in collaborative groups (ex. department or  
    grade level meetings, faculty meetings, collaborative group time, early release days) 
3. Provide learning opportunities aligned with and implied by School Improvement  
    Plans, and including Danielson’s Teaching Frameworks, and Common Core Learning    
    Standards. 
4. Provide teachers with the opportunity to participate in professional development as  
    part of their daily work. Teachers work with building level instructional coaches, peer  
    coaches, and colleagues. Professional development is at the core of faculty meetings  
    and department/grade level meetings. 


 


Objectives and Strategies







11 


 


 


D. Objective: Establish professional development that supports leadership development for  
                         administrators and teacher leaders. 
 


 Strategies: 1. Provide ongoing support for principals, instructional coaches, and teacher leaders. 
  2. Develop understanding of effective team structures and protocols 
                      3. Develop leaders’ skills around collaboration, evidence-based observations,    


                      differentiated instruction, common formative assessment process, data analysis,  
                      Looking at Student Work structures and protocols. 
                  4. Provide administrators with coaching support from the University of Rochester. 
                      


 


E. Objective:   Provide instructional and collegial support to new teachers through the NRW Mentoring   
            Program 
 


Strategies: 1. Tenured, permanently certified teachers who wish to be a mentor may apply to the Office of 
Curriculum and Instruction. Qualities of a mentor will include: ability to  


                            articulate and model good teaching practices; ability to demonstrate  
                        strong content knowledge; outstanding interpersonal skills; ability to make a time  
                        commitment to meet the needs of the new teacher(s); willingness to keep confidences;  
                        and a positive attitude toward the district, school, colleagues, and students. 


   2. The role of the mentor is: to provide instructional and personal support for the new 
                                          teacher; facilitate the growth and development of the new teacher; and share ideas,  
      problem-solve, promote reflective practice, and model collegiality. 


3. Mentoring activities include, but will not be limited to: developing instructional  
                                        plans; peer observations; role-playing of parent conferences; peer coaching; assisting with  
                                        administrative requirements; examining student work together; and engaging the new  
                                        teacher in reflective conversations. 
   4.  Mentors meet with their new teacher(s) a minimum of one time per week on a  
                                        scheduled basis. Mentors submit a log to the Office of Curriculum and Instruction 


              that will be a record of meetings and the topics, concerns, questions, and goals that have been 
the focus of their meetings.  


 


F. Objective:  100% of staff will meet the State requirement for school violence and intervention  
            training. 
 
    Strategies: 1. A district-wide safety team representing all stakeholders meets quarterly to review  


    and revise the following district documents: student code of conduct, district attendance 
    policy administration procedures, district-wide safety plan, and building level safety 
    plans. 


  2. At least annually the School District Resource Official meets with each school’s Building  







12 


 


                            Emergency Response Team to review a menu of crisis situations, “drill each scenario,”  
                            and update and revise the Emergency Plans as needed. The school’s team and  
                            administration will train the school’s staff on each of the various situations and scenarios. 


3. Each building principal ensures that annual updates are presented to students, parents,  
    and staff regarding behavioral expectations.   


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







13 


 


Professional Development Focus for 2014-15 
 


Initiatives: 
 
• Common Core Learning Standards (Student Achievement) 


 Implementation of CCLS modules: UPK ELA & Math, K-2 ELA, 3-8 
ELA, 9-11 ELA, 5-8 Math, Algebra & Geometry 


 Integration of Science and Social Studies with CCLS modules (NGSS & 
Social Studies Framework) 


 Content Area Literacy: Use of complex text & writing from sources at 
secondary level  


 Math Grant at MS level and Science Grant at HS level 
 Use of technology as a teaching and learning tool 


  
 Assessment of Learning & For Learning (Student Achievement) 


 Adoption and adaptation of CCLS module assessments 
 Use of common assessments at secondary level (STAR reading & Math) 
 Data dialogue protocol and learning walks 


 
• Explicit, Direct Instruction (Student Achievement) 


 Implementation of strategies for effective tier 1 core instruction (learning 
targets, check for understanding, non-volunteers) 


 
Continuing/Deepening: 
 
 Common Core Learning Standards (Student Achievement) 


 K-5 Math modules 
 Standards-based report card at elementary level 
 Increased parent communication around learning standards and how to 


support students at home 
 


 PBIS (Student Management) 
 Continued training for staff around explicit instruction for students about 


district-initiated positive character traits (e.g. bus driver training) 
 Bucket Filler program at elementary level, Cougar Pride at  MS level, 


Speak Out at HS level (peer recognition) 
  


 Special Education (Student Achievement) 
 Continued training around co-teaching models and commitment to 


providing common planning time for co-teaching pairs 
 Differentiation strategies for struggling learners 







14 


 


 Related service  providers  will continue content specific development 
required for licensure & effective  service provision 
 


 Common Benchmark Assessments & Interventions (Student Achievement) 
 Fountas & Pinnell 
 STAR Reading and Math 
 Leveled Literacy Intervention (LLI) 


  
 TCIS training for Crisis Intervention (Student Management) 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







15 


 


NYS STANDARDS FOR PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
New York State  


Professional Development Standards 
 
• Effective professional development fosters a culture of continuous improvement for all engaged in the 


learning endeavor. Practices address the needs of professionals throughout their careers and embrace other 
stakeholders as participants in learning. Activities are evaluated both for effectiveness and impact on student 
learning. 


 


• Effective professional development is that which improves the learning of all students, including those 
with different educational needs, learning styles, and incremental abilities, and those from diverse cultural 
and linguistic backgrounds.   


 


• Professional development is most effective when there are clear research-based expectations for what 
teachers should know and be able to do to support student learning. These expectations are reflected in the 
New York State Code of Ethics for Educators, district Professional Development Plans, Annual Professional 
Performance Reviews, and Commissioner’s Regulations related to teacher preparation and certification. They are 
also enumerated and reflected in collective bargaining agreements, job descriptions and assignments, 
performance appraisal systems, systems of rewards and incentives for teachers, and in the design and content of 
teacher professional development. 


 


• Professional development is most effective when it takes place in professional learning communities. These 
learning communities might take various forms, but they are all characterized by ongoing learning. They 
encourage individual and collaborative exploration, practice, and reflection.  They foster collegiality and 
problem solving, and they emphasize continuous improvement in classrooms and schools.  


 


• Professional development is most effective when there is collaborative leadership and shared 
responsibility for improving teaching and learning. Collaborative leadership for professional development 
recognizes that the pursuit of excellence is never-ending and embraces the individual and collective goals and 
talents of teachers, paraprofessionals, parents, school administrators, school boards, district and state staff, 
institutions of higher education, unions, and other stakeholders. 


 


• Professional development is most effective when it is job embedded, directly relevant to classroom 
practice, provided over time, and when it provides opportunity for practice of new strategies, time to 
reflect on changes, and time to integrate new learning into the teaching practice.  


 


• Professional development is most effective when adequate resources are provided.  Resources include 
money, people, and time.  Resources necessarily come from a variety of sources, and must be sufficiently 
sustained over time to insure the full impact of professional development.  Resources are adequate when they 
ensure that all educators can study, practice, reflect, receive feedback on practice, and implement knowledge and 
skills necessary to be effective with their students and others.  


 


 







16 


 


 








New York State Education Department 


 
Local Assistance Plan (LAP)  


Diagnostic Self-Review Document and Report  Template 


 
 


Name of Principal: Mark Mathews 


Name/Number of School: Leavenworth Middle School 


School Address: 5957 New Hartford Street Wolcott, NY 14590 


School Telephone Number: 315-594-3115 


Principal’s Direct Phone Number: 315-594-3115 


Principal’s E-Mail: mmathews@nrwcs.org 


District Telephone Number: 315-594-3141 


Superintendent’s Direct Phone Number: 315-594-2020 


Superintendent’s E-Mail: hhann@nrwcs.org 


Reason for LAP Designation: Failure to make AYP for 3 consecutive years: Subgroup: Students with Disabilities 


Website Link for Published Report:  


 
School Principal’s Signature ________________________________________________  Date ________________ 
 
I certify that the information provided above and in the attached documents is true and accurate to the best of my knowledge.  I understand that the 
accountability status determination reported in the Information Reporting Services (IRS) portal/nySTART is official and that the district and its school 
must meet all federal and State requirements pertaining to such accountability designations and expected student performance improvements.      
 
I further certify that I have reviewed the Diagnostic Self-Review Document and met with the school leadership to discuss and revise the rubric ratings as 
appropriate and that I concur that the ratings provided in the rubric are an accurate assessment of the school’s current performance in relation to the 
tenets.  
 
Superintendent’s Signature ________________________________________________  Date ________________ 
For New York City schools, the Community School District Superintendent must sign the self-assessment. 
 
A Message to School/District Leaders: 
 
The purpose of the New York State Education Department (NYSED) school review is to provide all New York State (NYS) stakeholders currently involved in school and/or 
district evaluation cogent messages around school improvement and highly effective educational practices. Our thinking is that the more the NYS educational community 
engages in common practices and uses common language to evaluate and describe effective schools, the more readily we, as an educational community, will be able to 
provide high-quality seats to all students in our state.  







 
Guidance 
 
The Diagnostic Self-Review Document provides an opportunity for the school, with the assistance of the district, to assess 
it’s current level of performance in regard to the school leadership, teacher practices and decisions, curriculum 
development and support, student social and emotional developmental health, and family and community engagement. 
Schools should use the self-review as an opportunity to identify actions to be taken to improve student academic results 
for the identified subgroup(s), describe the district resources to be used to implement the actions identified, and describe 
the professional development activities planned to support the implementation of the actions to improve student 
academic results. 
 
 The Diagnostic Self-Review Document and Report Template must be approved by the district’s Board of Education (for 
New York City (NYC) schools, it must be approved by the Chancellor) and posted to the district’s website by Friday, 
November 21, 2014, as well as kept on file at both the school and the district offices.    
 
Completing This Form 
 


 Before completing this form, please examine the rubric, and discuss the tenets and the statements of practice 
with the district representative who will be assisting you in completing, reviewing and approving your LAP Self-
Assessment. As the rubric used for the Diagnostic Self-Review is the same one as used for Diagnostic Review for 
School and District Effectiveness (DTSDE) conducted in Focus Districts, the DTSDE website 
(http://www.p12.nysed.gov/accountability/diagnostic-tool-institute/home.html) contains helpful information 
about the rubric. 


 In collaboration with your school leadership team and your district representatives, complete the Self-Review by 
identifying the strategies and practices you either are planning to implement or have implemented that meet the 
needs of your school, as identified by the assessment.    


o Pay particular attention to the performance of the subgroups that caused the school to be identified as 
requiring a Local Assistance Plan (LAP).   


o Use evaluative language and connect how the strategies and practices have or will impact teaching and 
learning. 


o Make sure the activities proposed reflect a new and robust direction or a continuation of practices that 
are showing evidence-based positive results in closing the achievement gap(s). 


 Be concise and clear when describing the evidence that supports your ratings.   
 Provide information in the plan that addresses the “who, what, when, and why” of the strategies chosen to meet 


the needs of the school. 
 Please Note:  The designation of a school as a LAP means that a school has areas that need improvement, 


particularly as they relate to the subgroup(s) of students who are failing to make academic gains.  These areas 
should be reflected in the ratings, evidence and action plans outlined in this assessment.   


 Before the completed Self-Review Document and Report Template are submitted to the Board of Education (for 
NYC, the Chancellor) for approval, the school superintendent must meet with the school leadership to discuss and 
revise the rubric ratings as appropriate.  


 
A successfully completed Self-Review provides an accurate picture of your school and its needs and describes the actions 
you and the district will take to address these needs.  The evidence and plans for improvement described in the document 
will closely align to the expectations put forth in the rubric, therefore aligning the plan to the optimal conditions for school  
effectiveness.  
 
If you have any questions regarding completion of the Local Assistance Plan Self Assessment, please send an email 
to accountinfo@mail.nysed.gov.   



http://www.p12.nysed.gov/accountability/diagnostic-tool-institute/home.html

mailto:accountinfo@mail.nysed.gov





  


 3 


 
 


School Information Sheet 
Grade 
Configuration 5-8 Total  


Enrollment 351 Title 1 
Population % Attendance 


Rate 63% 


 
Free Lunch % Reduced 


Lunch % Student 
Sustainability % Limited English 


Proficient % Students with 
Disabilities 14% 


Types and Number of English Language Learner Classes 
#Transitional Bilingual  #Dual Language  #Self-Contained English as a Second Language 0 


Types and Number of Special Education Classes 
#Special Classes 8 


periods 
(56 
minute) 


#Consultant Teaching  #Integrated Collaborative Teaching All grade levels 
for ELA and 
Math 


# Resource Room 6 
periods 
(56 
minute) 


    


Types and Number Special Classes 
#Visual Arts  #Music  #Drama  # Foreign Language  # Dance  CTE # 


Racial/Ethnic Origin 
American 
Indian or 


Alaska Native 
.85% 


Black or 
African 


American 
2% Hispanic 


or Latino 7.4% 
Asian or Native 
Hawaiian/Other 
Pacific Islander 


.6% White 88% 
Multi


- 
racial 


.85% 


Personnel 
Years Principal  
Assigned to School 


2nd year # of Assistant 
Principals 


1 # of Deans 0 # of Counselors /  
Social Workers 


2 


% of Teachers with No 
Valid Teaching Certificate 


0 % Teaching 
Out of 
Certification 


 % Teaching with Fewer 
Than 3 Yrs. of Exp. 


 Average Teacher 
Absences 


 


Overall Accountability Status 
ELA 


Performance at 
levels 3 & 4 


 
Mathematics 


Performance at 
levels 3 & 4 


 
Science 


Performance at 
levels 3 & 4 


 
4 Year  


Graduation Rate  
(HS Only) 


 


Credit Accumulation (High School Only) 
% of 1st yr. 


students who 
earned 10+ 


credits 


 


% of 2nd yr. 
students who 


earned 10+ 
credits 


 
% of 3rd yr. students 


who earned 10+ 
credits 


 6 Year 
Graduation Rate  


Reason for LAP (Indicate under the Category) 
Achievement Gap (AG), Cut Point (CP),  and/or Did Not Meet Adequate Yearly Progress (AYP) 


ELA Mathematics Science Graduation Rate Subgroup 
    American Indian or Alaska Native 
    Hispanic or Latino 
    White 


X X   Students with Disabilities 
    Economically Disadvantaged 
    Black or African American 
    Asian or Native Hawaiian/Other Pacific Islander 
    Multi-racial 
    Limited English Proficient 


 
Rate each practice with an H, E, D, or I in the space provided. Before assigning a rating of Effective or Highly Effective to a Statement of Practice, the school should pay 
particular attention to how the statement of practice is related to the performance of the subgroup(s) of students who caused the school to be identified as requiring a 
LAP. When providing a response to a Statement of Practice that Is Effective, Developing, or Ineffective, the school should specify whether actions will be targeted to the 
subgroup(s) of students who caused the school’s identification or be part of a whole school transformation or turnaround strategy.







  


 4 


 


 
Tenet 2 - School Leader Practices and Decisions: Visionary leaders create a school community and culture that lead to success, well-being and 
high academic outcomes for all students via systems of continuous and sustainable school improvement. 


Rating 
Statement of Practice 2.2: The school leader ensures that the school community shares the Specific, Measurable, Ambitious, Results-
oriented, and Timely (SMART) goals/mission and long-term vision inclusive of core values that address the priorities outlined in the 
School Comprehensive Educational Plan (SCEP). 


 Highly Effective 


a) The SMART goals/mission and long-term vision are created and supported by staff, families, and 
students and are uniformly seen, heard, and known across the entire school community and affiliated 
partnerships.  
b) The school leader champions the implementation of a data-driven mission for student achievement 
and well-being and holds the school community of stakeholders accountable for working to realize the 
long-term vision and the school priorities as outlined in the SCEP and other school improvement 
documents.  
c) The school leader and community stakeholders regularly monitor and evaluate progress toward 
attainment of SMART goals and priorities in the SCEP that are aligned to the long-term vision, making 
adjustments when goals are not achieved, improvements are needed, and priorities become misaligned. 


 Effective 


a) The SMART goals/mission and long-term vision are created and supported by a representative group 
of staff, families, and students and some affiliated partnerships.   
b) The school leader shares a data-driven mission for student achievement and well-being with the 
school community of stakeholders and has a plan for how to work together to realize this long-term 
vision and the school priorities as outlined in the SCEP and other school improvement documents.  
c) The school leader and community stakeholders monitor and evaluate progress once or twice a year 
toward SMART goals and priorities in the SCEP aligned to the long-term vision. 


X Developing 


a) The SMART goals/mission and long-term vision are created with limited input by stakeholders, and are 
in the process of being shared with staff, families, and students across the school community.  
b) The school leader has a data-driven mission for student achievement and well-being, outlined in the 
SCEP, and is in the process of developing how the school community will work to realize the long-term 
vision.  
c) The school leader is in the process of adapting SMART goals that better align to the long-term vision, 
or these SMART goals exist but are not monitored and evaluated. 


 Ineffective 


a) The SMART goals/mission and long-term vision are unknown, not commonly understood, and/or have 
not been shared with staff, families, and students across the school community.  
b) The school leader has not developed a data-driven mission that is connected to the long-term vision.  
c) The school leader has not developed SMART goals or the current goals are not aligned to the long-
term vision. 


Please indicate the evidence used to 
determine the rating.   
Check all that apply. 
 


X   Classroom Observations – # Visited:  __20___ 
X    Interviews with Students –  #:  _36____ 
      Interviews with Support Staff – #:  _____ 
X    Interviews with Teachers –  #:  __8___  
X    Interviews with Parents/Guardians –  #:  __6       
X    Other: Collaboration w District Level Lap Team 


 Documents Reviewed:  
Student discipline data, IEPs for students 
with disabilities, RtI procedures and 
protocols, District and building vision and 
mission statements, District Strategic plan, 
School Improvement Plan 


 


If the SOP rating is Effective, Developing or Ineffective, please provide a response in the areas below. 


Actions in this area to be taken to 
improve the identified subgroup(s) 
student performance levels. 
 


• Organize parent/faculty group to support School Improvement Team (SIT) including monthly 
meetings: looking at data that supports the SMART goals in the SIP, adjusting and monitoring 
regularly. 


• SMART goals from SIP(School Improvement Plan) monitored and evaluated by District-level 
School improvement Team (Mark, Kristin, Megan, Melissa, Melanie, superintendent). 


• Revisit mission/vision statements by including all stakeholders in conversations about the 
current statements with an eye on updating them as needed. 


Describe the district resources to be 
used to implement the actions in 
this area to improve the identified 
subgroup(s) student performance 
levels. 


• Support from Director of Curriculum & Instruction, Director of Special Education, Director of 
Pupil Services, building Principal and Assistant Principal. 


• Monthly meetings of the school level SIT. 
• Bi-monthly meetings of the district level SIT. 
• Establish a process for revisiting mission/vision statements 


Describe the professional 
development activities planned to 
support the implementation of the 
actions in this area. 


• Information will be disseminated at faculty meetings, vertical level meetings, email, etc. No 
Professional Development needed to support this area. 







  


 5 


Rating Statement of Practice 2.3: Leaders make strategic decisions to organize programmatic, human, and fiscal capital resources. 


X Highly Effective 


a) The school leader collaborates with staff to create and use transparent systems and protocols that 
afford students and teachers the ability to fully benefit from a flexible and thoughtful program, which 
includes a creative expanded learning time program, that are aligned to student achievement.  
b) The school leader strategically recruits, hires, and sustains personnel. The leader uses a variety of 
partner organizations to create a pool of internal and external human capital that enables the school to 
creatively, equitably, and adequately meet the academic and social needs of all students. Where the 
district makes the hiring decisions, the school leader articulates successfully the need for appropriate 
staff.  
c) The school leader analyzes and identifies fiscal capital available to the school community throughout 
the school year, making on-going strategic and sustainable decisions to fund targeted efforts aligned to 
school-wide goals, considering the needs of all students and staff members. Where the district makes the 
fiscal decisions, the school leader articulates successfully the need for appropriate funding.  


 Effective 


a) The school leader collaborates with staff to create and use systems and protocols for programming for 
students and teachers, which incorporates an expanded learning time program, that are aligned to 
student achievement.  
b) The school leader uses some partnerships to recruit, hire, and sustain personnel that enable the 
school to meet the academic and social needs of the students. Where the district makes the hiring 
decisions, the school leader articulates the need for appropriate staff. 
c) The school leader analyzes and identifies fiscal capital available to the school community throughout 
the school year, making interim strategic decisions to fund targeted efforts aligned to school-wide goals, 
considering the needs of all students and staff members. Where the district makes the fiscal decisions, 
the school leader articulates the need for appropriate funding.  


 Developing 


a) The school leader uses systems, including an expanded learning time program, for programming for 
students and teachers that are aligned to student achievement for some groups of students.  
b) The school leader has taken some steps to secure personnel who will enable the school to meet the 
academic and social needs of the students. Where the district makes the hiring decisions, the school 
leader has not clearly articulated the school’s needs.  
c) The school leader makes decisions sporadically on the use of available fiscal capital to fund efforts 
aligned to school-wide goals. Where the district makes the fiscal decisions, the school leader has not 
clearly articulated the school’s funding need.  


 Ineffective 


a) The school leader does not have systems for programming for students and teachers or the systems, 
including an expanded learning time program, are not aligned to student achievement, or an expanded 
learning time program does not exist and there are no plans to create one.  
b) The school leader is not addressing the need to hire personnel to meet the academic and social needs 
of the students. Where the district makes the hiring decisions, the school leader has not made an effort 
to communicate with the district about hiring needs.  
c) The school leader does not connect the use of fiscal capital to school goals. Where the district makes 
the fiscal decisions, the school leader has not made an effort to communicate with the district about 
funding needs.  


Please indicate the evidence used to 
determine the rating.   
Check all that apply. 
 


 Classroom Observations – # Visited:  _____ 
 Interviews with Students –  #:  _____ 
 Interviews with Support Staff – #:  _____ 
 Interviews with Teachers –  #:  _____  
 Interviews with Parents/Guardians –  #:  _____
 Other: ______________________________ 


 Documents Reviewed:  
 
 
 
 


 


If the SOP rating is Effective, Developing or Ineffective, please provide a response in the areas below. 
Actions in this area to be taken to 
improve the identified subgroup(s) 
student performance levels. 
 


 


Describe the district resources to be 
used to implement the actions in 
this area to improve the identified 
subgroup(s) student performance 
levels. 


 


Describe the professional 
development activities planned to 
support the implementation of the 
actions in this area. 


 







  


 6 


 


Rating 
Statement of Practice 2.4: The school leader has a fully functional system in place aligned to the district's Annual Professional 
Performance Review (APPR) to conduct targeted and frequent observation and track progress of teacher practices based on student 
data and feedback.  


X Highly Effective 


a) The school leader and other school administrators collaboratively developed a formal school-wide 
plan, known to all staff and aligned to the district’s APPR plan, for frequently observing and providing 
actionable feedback throughout the school year on teaching practices based on student data.  
b) The school leader and other school administrators are implementing the school’s observation plan and 
providing timely, on-going, evidence-based, actionable feedback to staff that is directly aligned to 
established criteria, including the teaching rubric and other agreed upon evaluation instruments, and 
which encourages and supports staff to take ownership for the next stage of their development.  
c) The school leader and other school administrators monitor the plan for observing teachers and use 
observation data and other measures of teacher effectiveness to assign/reassign, counsel, and provide 
on-going targeted professional development opportunities in multiple formats (e.g., coaching, 
mentoring, peer support) to staff.  


 Effective 


a) The school leader has developed a plan, aligned to the district's APPR plan, for frequently observing 
and providing actionable feedback on teaching practices throughout the school year based on student 
data.  
b) The school leader and other school administrators are implementing the school’s observation plan and 
providing timely on-going, evidence-based, actionable feedback to staff that is directly aligned to 
established criteria, including the teaching rubric and other agreed upon evaluation instruments.  
c) The school leader and other school administrators monitor the plan for observing teachers and use 
observation data and other measures of teacher effectiveness to assign/reassign, counsel, and provide 
on-going professional development opportunities to staff.  


 Developing 


a) The school leader and other school administrators use an informal schedule for observing and 
providing feedback on teaching practices throughout the school year and/or are developing a formalized 
plan aligned to the district’s APPR plan.  
b) The school leader and other school administrators are providing feedback to staff that is aligned to 
established criteria, including the teaching rubric and other agreed upon evaluation instruments.  
c) The school leader and other school administrators do not consistently use observation data to provide 
on-going professional development opportunities to staff.  


 Ineffective 


a) The school leader and other school administrators have no formal plan or schedule for frequently 
observing teaching practices and/or providing feedback.  
b) The school leader and other school administrators are not providing feedback to staff aligned to 
established criteria, including the teaching rubric and other agreed upon evaluation instruments.  
c) The school leader and other school administrators do not use observation data and other measures of 
teacher effectiveness to inform staffing and professional development decisions.  


Please indicate the evidence used to 
determine the rating.   
Check all that apply. 
 


 Classroom Observations – # Visited:  _____ 
 Interviews with Students –  #:  _____ 
 Interviews with Support Staff – #:  _____ 
 Interviews with Teachers –  #:  _____  
 Interviews with Parents/Guardians –  #:  _____
 Other: ______________________________ 


 Documents Reviewed:  
 
 
 
 


 


If the SOP rating is Effective, Developing or Ineffective, please provide a response in the areas below. 
Actions in this area to be taken to 
improve the identified subgroup(s) 
student performance levels. 
 


 


Describe the district resources to be 
used to implement the actions in 
this area to improve the identified 
subgroup(s) student performance 
levels. 
 


 


Describe the professional 
development activities planned to 
support the implementation of the 
actions in this area. 


 


 







  


 7 


Rating 
Statement of Practice 2.5: Leaders effectively use evidence-based systems and structures to examine and improve critical individual 
and school-wide practices as defined in the SCEP (student achievement, curriculum and teacher practices; leadership development; 
community/family engagement; and student social and emotional developmental health).  


 Highly Effective 
a) The school leader models excellence for the staff in the creation and use of evidence-based systems 
that are dynamic, adaptive, and interconnected and address individual and school-wide practices.  
b) The school leader, in collaboration with the school community, monitors and revises evidence-based 
systems that address practices used by staff members connected to improvement areas in the SCEP.  


X Effective 
a) The school leader requires the staff to use evidence-based systems that are dynamic, adaptive, and 
interconnected and address individual and school-wide practices.  
b) The school leader monitors and revises evidence-based systems that address practices used by staff 
members connected to improvement areas in the SCEP.  


 Developing 
a) The school leader encourages the staff to use systems that are interconnected and/or systems are not 
modified based on analysis of school-wide practices.  
b) The school leader is working to develop an evidence-based system to monitor and revise practices 
used by staff members.  


 Ineffective 
a) The school leader does not encourage the staff to use systems, or systems do not exist to address 
school-wide practices.  
b) The school leader has not taken steps to develop an evidence-based system to monitor and revise 
practices used by the staff members.  


Please indicate the evidence used to 
determine the rating.   
Check all that apply. 
 


X   Classroom Observations – # Visited:  __20___ 
X    Interviews with Students –  #:  _36____ 
      Interviews with Support Staff – #:  _____ 
X    Interviews with Teachers –  #:  __8___  
X    Interviews with Parents/Guardians –  #:  __6       
X    Other: Collaboration w District Level Lap Team 


 Documents Reviewed:  
Student discipline data, IEPs for students with 
disabilities, RtI procedures and protocols, 
District and building vision and mission 
statements, District Strategic plan, School 
Improvement Plan 


 


If the SOP rating is Effective, Developing or Ineffective, please provide a response in the areas below. 


Actions in this area to be taken to 
improve the identified subgroup(s) 
student performance levels. 
 


• Organize learning walks with specific monthly focus related to the SIP(School Improvement 
Plan); used to gather data, drive professional development, and promote instructional 
improvement. 


• Continue to develop and implement Response to Intervention system. 
• Monthly meetings with SIT team and bi-monthly meetings with District SIT (School 


Improvement) team. 


Describe the district resources to be 
used to implement the actions in 
this area to improve the identified 
subgroup(s) student performance 
levels. 


• Support from Director of Curriculum & Instruction, Director of Special Education, Director of 
Pupil Services, building Principal and Assistant Principal. 


• Procedure for learning walks will be shared by principal. 
• Continue developing and monitoring Response to Intervention system at weekly Response to 


Intervention planning meetings (Administrators, Counselors, DASA coordinator.) 
• Time to deliver professional development. 


 
Describe the professional 
development activities planned to 
support the implementation of the 
actions in this area. 


• Professional development relating to Tier 2 and Tier 3 Interventions. 


 
Tenet 3 - Curriculum Development and Support: The school has rigorous and coherent curricula and assessments that are ***appropriately 
aligned to the Common Core Learning Standards (CCLS) for all students and are modified for identified subgroups in order to maximize teacher 
instructional practices and student-learning outcomes. 


Rating 
Statement of Practice 3.2: The school leader ensures and supports the quality implementation of a systematic plan of rigorous and 
coherent curricula appropriately aligned to the Common Core Learning Standards (CCLS) that is monitored and adapted to meet the 
needs of students.  


 Highly Effective 


a) The school leader, using a distributive leadership model, ensures that a systematic plan (i.e., a plan 
that has targeted goals to address the needs of all students and subgroups, a schedule for professional 
development support, and vertical/horizontal collaborative meeting time) exists for the quality 
implementation of rigorous CCLS curricula.  
b) The school leader uses the systematic plan to provide teachers access to robust pedagogical support 
(i.e., inter-visitation, cross-grade conversations, exemplar curriculum models, access to expert CCLS 
curriculum writers, and CCLS conferences), materials, and training aligned to CCLS curricula and 
instructional shifts for individual and subgroups of students.  
c) The school leader ensures that a cohesive, comprehensive, and adaptive curricula, inclusive of clearly 







  


 8 


developed units aligned to CCLS and NYS standards, is used across all areas of study, including 
interventions, AIS/RTI, dual credit courses, and electives, by monitoring the implementation of the 
curricula and regularly examining formative and summative assessments and student work.  


 Effective 


a) The school leader ensures that a systematic plan (i.e., a plan that has targeted goals to address the 
needs of all students and subgroups, a schedule for professional development support, and 
vertical/horizontal collaborative meeting time) exists for the quality implementation of rigorous CCLS 
curricula.  
b) The school leader uses the systematic plan to provide teachers access to pedagogical support, 
materials, and training aligned to CCLS curricula and instructional shifts for individual and subgroups of 
students.  
c) The school leader ensures that staff use a comprehensive and adaptive curricula, inclusive of clearly 
developed units aligned to CCLS and NYS standards, across all areas of study, including interventions, 
AIS/RTI, dual credit courses, and electives, by monitoring the implementation of curricula.  


X Developing 


a) The school leader is in the process of developing a written plan that includes targeted goals to address 
the needs of students, schedule/calendar for professional development support, and vertical/horizontal 
collaborative meeting time for implementing CCLS curricula.  
b) The school leader is beginning to provide appropriate access to pedagogical support, materials, and 
training to teachers aligned to CCLS curricula and instructional shifts for individual and subgroups of 
students.  
c) The school leader encourages staff to use comprehensive curricula, inclusive of clearly developed units 
aligned to CCLS and NYS standards, across all areas of study, including interventions, AIS/RTI, dual credit 
courses, and electives.  


 Ineffective 


a) The school leader has no written plan for CCLS and NYS curricula alignment across all areas of study 
and is not developing one.  
b) The school leader does not provide access to pedagogical support, materials, and training to teachers 
aligned to CCLS curricula and instructional shifts for individual and subgroups of students.  
c) The school leader does not ensure and makes little effort to encourage teachers across all areas of 
study to use curricula aligned to CCLS and NYS standards.  


Please indicate the evidence used to 
determine the rating.   
Check all that apply. 
 


X   Classroom Observations – # Visited:  __20___ 
X    Interviews with Students –  #:  _36____ 
      Interviews with Support Staff – #:  _____ 
X    Interviews with Teachers –  #:  __8___  
X    Interviews with Parents/Guardians –  #:  __6       
X    Other: Collaboration w District Level Lap Team 


 Documents Reviewed:  
Student discipline data, IEPs for students with 
disabilities, RtI procedures and protocols, 
District and building vision and mission 
statements, District Strategic plan, School 
Improvement Plan 


 


If the SOP rating is Effective, Developing or Ineffective, please provide a response in the areas below. 


Actions in this area to be taken to 
improve the identified subgroup(s) 
student performance levels. 
 


• Continue to support vertical teams; meetings twice a month to examine student work and plan 
for instruction; specific focus on work from students with disabilities. Continue utilizing LASW 
(Looking at Student Work) protocol. 


• Continue to develop and implement Response to Intervention system. 
• Develop an exemplar/model classroom using the workshop model for purposes of peer 


observation and to develop our capacity for delivering Tier 2 interventions in the classroom. 


Describe the district resources to be 
used to implement the actions in 
this area to improve the identified 
subgroup(s) student performance 
levels. 
 


• Support from Director of Curriculum & Instruction, Director of Special Education, Director of 
Pupil Services, building Principal and Assistant Principal. 


• Time to provide professional development. 
• Support for Response to Intervention implementation. 
• Time to work in vertical teams. 
• Continue developing and monitoring Response to Intervention system at weekly RtI planning 


meetings (Administrators, Counselors, DASA coordinator.) 
• Funding to support Professional Development. 


Describe the professional 
development activities planned to 
support the implementation of the 
actions in this area. 


• Professional development for administrators regarding implementing Response to 
Interventions. 


• Professional development relating to Tier 2 and Tier 3 interventions. 
• Professional development in differentiated instruction. 
• Professional development in the workshop model. 
• DDI (Data Driven Instruction) process. 







  


 9 


 
Rating Statement of Practice 3.3: Teachers develop and ensure that unit and lesson plans used include data-driven instruction (DDI) 


protocols that are appropriately aligned to the CCLS and NYS content standards and address student achievement needs.  


 Highly Effective 


a) Teachers use targeted agendas based on student and school data to develop collaboratively unit and 
lesson plans to meet the demands of CCLS and grade level DDI protocols (e.g., documentation of ongoing 
analysis of formative and summative assessments, student work, use of rubrics) in all grades and subject 
areas.  
b) Teachers use a full complement of curricula tools, such as pacing calendars, curriculum maps, unit and 
lesson plans, across all grades, content areas, and classes that incorporate a progression of sequenced 
and scaffolded skills for all groups of students (including special education and English language learners) 
and use a variety of complex materials appropriately aligned to the CCLS.  
c) Teachers consistently monitor and adjust curricula to support the CCLS instructional shifts and NYS 
content standards and ensure higher-order thinking skills are consistently present by providing necessary 
supports and extensions for all groups of students across all content areas and grades.  


 Effective 


a) Teachers develop collaboratively unit and lesson plans that meet the demands of CCLS and grade-level 
DDI protocols (e.g., documentation of ongoing analysis of formative and summative assessments, 
student work, use of rubrics) and address student achievement needs in all grades and subject areas.  
b) Teachers use unit and lesson plans across all grades, content areas, and classes that incorporate a 
progression of sequenced and scaffolded skills for all groups of students (including special education and 
English language learners) and use a variety of complex materials appropriately aligned to the CCLS.  
c) Teachers monitor and adjust curricula to support the CCLS instructional shifts and NYS content 
standards and ensure higher-order thinking skills are consistently present by providing necessary 
supports and extensions for all groups of students across core content areas and grades.  


X Developing 


a) Teachers individually or inconsistently collaborate to develop unit and lesson plans based on student 
data to meet the demands of CCLS and grade level DDI protocols (e.g., documentation of ongoing 
analysis of formative and summative assessments, student work, use of rubrics) in all grades and subject 
areas.  
b) Teachers use lesson plans that are either inconsistently aligned to CCLS or are aligned to the CCLS but 
do not use a variety of complex materials that incorporate a progression of sequenced and scaffolded 
skills.  
c) Teachers either are in the process of developing protocols to monitor and adjust curricula to support 
the CCLS instructional shifts and NYS content standards, or teachers inconsistently monitor and adjust 
curricula across the school, or teachers monitor and adjust no more than twice a year for all groups of 
students across content areas and grades.  


 Ineffective 
a) Teachers do not use formal structures and data to work collaboratively to develop unit and lesson 
plans.  
b) Teachers use lesson plans that are not aligned to CCLS.  
c) Teachers do not monitor and adjust curricula, and there is no plan to begin to do so.  


Please indicate the evidence used to 
determine the rating.   
Check all that apply. 
 


X   Classroom Observations – # Visited:  __20___ 
X    Interviews with Students –  #:  _36____ 
      Interviews with Support Staff – #:  _____ 
X    Interviews with Teachers –  #:  __8___  
X    Interviews with Parents/Guardians –  #:  __6       
X    Other: Collaboration w District Level Lap Team 


 Documents Reviewed:  
Student discipline data, IEPs for students with 
disabilities, RtI procedures and protocols, 
District and building vision and mission 
statements, District Strategic plan, School 
Improvement Plan 


 


If the SOP rating is Effective, Developing or Ineffective, please provide a response in the areas below. 


Actions in this area to be taken to 
improve the identified subgroup(s) 
student performance levels. 
 


• Continue to support vertical teams; meetings twice a month to examine student work and plan 
for instruction; specific focus on work from students with disabilities. Continue utilizing LASW 
(Looking at Student Work) protocol. 


• Continue to provide time and compensation for teachers to attend Boot camp, summer 
curriculum work, co-teaching professional development, and other PD offered throughout the 
year. 


• Provide teachers with exemplar lesson planning templates, EQUIP rubric to align lesson 
planning to CCLS (Common Core Learning Standards), use early release time to unpack the 
modules and individual lessons within module, with a specific focus on differentiation and 
scaffolding. 


• Co-teaching staff sharing examples of differentiated lessons with discussion regarding 
strategies to give access to general education curriculum to students with disabilities. 


• Utilize the common definition of Tier one core instruction (developed during 2013-14 school 
year) to develop consistency and effective practice. 







  


 10 


• Close reading protocols will be used in all content and special subject areas. 
Describe the district resources to be 
used to implement the actions in 
this area to improve the identified 
subgroup(s) student performance 
levels. 
 


• Support from Director of Curriculum & Instruction, Director of Special Education, Director of 
Pupil Services, building Principal and Assistant Principal. 


• Funding to support professional development. 
• Data Driven Instruction process. 
• Time to work in vertical teams. 


Describe the professional 
development activities planned to 
support the implementation of the 
actions in this area. 


• Professional development for administrators regarding implementing Response to 
Interventions. 


• Professional development relating to Tier 2 and Tier 3 interventions. 
• Professional development in differentiated instruction. 
• Professional development in the workshop model. 
• DDI (Data Driven Instruction) process. 


 
Rating Statement of Practice 3.4: The school leader and teachers have developed a comprehensive plan for teachers to partner within and 


across all grades and subjects to create interdisciplinary curricula targeting the arts, technology, and other enrichment opportunities.  


 Highly Effective 


a) The school leader and teachers consistently use comprehensive and adaptive plans to form 
partnerships and create interdisciplinary curricula targeting the arts, technology, and other enrichment 
opportunities within and across all grade levels and subjects.  
b) Teachers consistently collaborate within and across grades and subjects to deliver interdisciplinary 
curricula that incorporate the arts, technology, and other enrichment opportunities, and there is 
evidence that teachers regularly develop innovative strategies for connecting these curricula with 
subject-specific curricula.  
c) Teachers consistently collaborate in grade/subject level teams to formally reflect on the impact of the 
interdisciplinary curricula, take immediate action to make revisions when needed, and ensure that there 
is a common understanding about what is taught and why it is taught.  


 Effective 


a) The school leader and teachers use plans to form partnerships and create interdisciplinary curricula 
targeting the arts, technology, and other enrichment opportunities within and across all grade levels and 
subjects.  
b) Teachers periodically collaborate within grades and subjects to deliver interdisciplinary curricula that 
incorporate the arts, technology, and other enrichment opportunities, and there is evidence that 
teachers regularly develop innovative strategies for connecting these curricula with subject-specific 
curricula.  
c) Teachers periodically collaborate in grade/subject level teams to formally reflect on the impact of the 
interdisciplinary curricula, take action according to a set schedule (e.g., beginning, middle, and end of the 
year), make revisions when needed, and ensure that there is a common understanding about what is 
taught and why it is taught.  


X Developing 


a) The school leader and teachers address interdisciplinary curricula and develop partnerships in the 
absence of a plan or are in the process of developing a plan to create interdisciplinary curricula and 
partnerships targeting the arts, technology, and other enrichment opportunities within and across all 
grade levels and core subjects.  
b) Teachers are beginning to collaborate and discuss ways to deliver interdisciplinary curricula that 
incorporate the arts, technology, and other enrichment opportunities, or limited numbers of teachers 
deliver interdisciplinary curricula within grades and subjects.  
c) Teachers individually reflect on the impact of interdisciplinary curricula, or the school leader and 
teachers are in the process of planning formal reflection time to discuss the impact of interdisciplinary 
curricula and make revisions.  


 Ineffective 


a) The school leader and teachers do not have formal partnerships to address interdisciplinary curricula.  
b) Teachers do not collaborate and discuss ways to deliver interdisciplinary curricula within grades and 
subjects.  
c) Teachers have not developed interdisciplinary curricula, or there are no plans or processes for 
reflecting and revising current curricula.  


Please indicate the evidence used to 
determine the rating.   
Check all that apply. 
 


X   Classroom Observations – # Visited:  __20___ 
X    Interviews with Students –  #:  _36____ 
      Interviews with Support Staff – #:  _____ 
X    Interviews with Teachers –  #:  __8___  
X    Interviews with Parents/Guardians –  #:  __6       
X    Other: Collaboration w District Level Lap Team 


 Documents Reviewed:  
Student discipline data, IEPs for students with 
disabilities, RtI procedures and protocols, 
District and building vision and mission 
statements, District Strategic plan, School 
Improvement Plan 


 


If the SOP rating is Effective, Developing or Ineffective, please provide a response in the areas below. 







  


 11 


Actions in this area to be taken to 
improve the identified subgroup(s) 
student performance levels. 
 


• Special area teachers are part of vertical teams, which meet twice a month, where they plan 
for instruction according to focus areas identified by the department and look at student work 
as measured against grade level criteria. Continue utilizing LASW (Looking at Student Work) 
protocol. 


• Interim assessments will provide progress data which will be used to inform instruction and 
Response to Intervention processes. 


• Close reading protocols will be used in all content and special subject areas. 
Describe the district resources to be 
used to implement the actions in 
this area to improve the identified 
subgroup(s) student performance 
levels. 
 


• Support from Director of Curriculum & Instruction, Director of Special Education, Director of 
Pupil Services, building Principal and Assistant Principal. 


• Time to meet in vertical teams. 
• Time to create interim assessments and time to utilize data. 


Describe the professional 
development activities planned to 
support the implementation of the 
actions in this area. 


• Professional development on close reading protocols. 
• DDI (Data Driven Instruction) process. 


 
Rating Statement of Practice 3.5: Teachers implement a comprehensive system for using formative and summative assessments for 


strategic short and long-range curriculum planning that involves student reflection, tracking of, and ownership of learning.  


 Highly Effective 


a) Teachers have and use strategic comprehensive assessment system for using multiple measures of 
data: structure and protocols for analysis, plan to track progress over time on explicitly identified targets, 
creation of pre- and post-unit assessments and have a process for adapting curriculum that 
demonstrates improving individual and subgroup achievement.  
b) Teachers create and use a variety of appropriate, common assessments data (including pre-, post-, 
formative and summative) across all grades and subject areas ensuring alignment between the 
curriculum and assessment tools.  
c) Teachers have a system for providing regular and explicit feedback to students that is based on data 
and facilitates student ownership of learning. This system includes student use of rubrics to complete 
assignments, student self-assessment, student tracking of individual progress, and student reflection 
upon and adjustment of individual learning strategies to address explicit teacher feedback.  


 Effective 


a) Teachers have and use a comprehensive system for using data: identified targets, pre-and post-unit 
assessments and have a process for adapting curriculum that demonstrates improving individual and 
subgroup achievement.  
b) Teachers use pre-, post-, formative and summative assessment data across all grades and subject 
areas, ensuring alignment between the curriculum and assessment tools.  
c) Teachers provide on-going feedback on data to students, supporting student ownership of learning.  


X Developing 


a) Teachers are beginning to develop a system to analyze and use data to make curricular decisions.  
b) Teachers are in the process of developing multiples types of assessments to ensure alignment 
between curriculum and assessment, or the use of the variety of assessments is inconsistent throughout 
the school.  
c) Teachers are learning to provide feedback based on data to students to address student ownership of 
learning.  


 Ineffective 
a) Teachers discuss data, but these discussions do not inform curricular decisions.  
b) Teachers do not use a variety of assessments, or the assessments used are misaligned.  
c) Teachers do not provide feedback based on data.  


Please indicate the evidence used to 
determine the rating.   
Check all that apply. 
 


X   Classroom Observations – # Visited:  __20___ 
X    Interviews with Students –  #:  _36____ 
      Interviews with Support Staff – #:  _____ 
X    Interviews with Teachers –  #:  __8___  
X    Interviews with Parents/Guardians –  #:  __6       
X    Other: Collaboration w District Level Lap Team 


 Documents Reviewed:  
Student discipline data, IEPs for students with 
disabilities, RtI procedures and protocols, 
District and building vision and mission 
statements, District Strategic plan, School 
Improvement Plan 


 


If the SOP rating is Effective, Developing or Ineffective, please provide a response in the areas below. 


Actions in this area to be taken to 
improve the identified subgroup(s) 
student performance levels. 
 


• Interim assessments & formative assessment will provide progress data which will be used to 
inform instruction and Response to Intervention processes. 


• Continue to support vertical team meetings twice a month to examine student work against 
grade level expectations (CCLS-Common Core Learning Standards) and use the outcomes to 
plan for instruction; specific focus on work from students with disabilities.  Continue utilizing 
LASW (Looking at Student Work) protocol. 







  


 12 


• Use of mid and end of module assessments for ELA and Math. 
 


Describe the district resources to be 
used to implement the actions in 
this area to improve the identified 
subgroup(s) student performance 
levels. 
 


• Support from Director of Curriculum & Instruction, Director of Special Education, Director of 
Pupil Services, building Principal and Assistant Principal. 


• Time to meet in vertical teams. 


Describe the professional 
development activities planned to 
support the implementation of the 
actions in this area. 


• Continued professional development on formative assessment. 
• Professional development relating to LASW (Looking at Student Work) protocol. 


 
Tenet 4 - Teacher Practices and Decisions: Teachers engage in strategic practices and decision-making in order to address the gap between 
what students know and need to learn, so that all students and pertinent subgroups experience consistent high levels of engagement, thinking 
and achievement. 


Rating Statement of Practice 4.2: School and teacher leaders ensure that instructional practices and strategies are organized around 
annual, unit, and daily lesson plans that address all student goals and needs.  


 Highly Effective 


a) School and teacher leaders ensure that teachers use daily a transparent, targeted plan that is 
informed by data (summative, interim, attendance, IEPs, NYSESLAT, etc.) and grade-level and school-
wide goals for all groups of students.  
b) Teacher leaders and coaches ensure that teachers use instructional practices and strategies that are 
adaptive and aligned to plans for groups of students with a variety of needs and learning styles (including 
students with disabilities, English language learners and other sub-groups) and provide timely and 
appropriate instructional interventions and extensions for all students.  
c) Teacher leaders and coaches ensure that teachers use data to establish short- and long-term goals 
with learning trajectories for groups of students based on identified and timely needs.  


 Effective 


a) School and teacher leaders ensure that teachers use a plan that is informed by data (summative, 
interim, attendance, IEPs, NYSESLAT, etc.) and grade-level goals for all groups of students.  
b) Teacher leaders and coaches ensure that teachers use instructional practices and strategies that are 
adaptive and aligned to plans for groups of students with a variety of needs and learning styles (including 
students with disabilities, English language learners and other sub-groups) and provide instructional 
interventions to students.  
c) Teacher leaders and coaches ensure that teachers establish short- and long-term goals for groups of 
students based on grade-level benchmarks.  


X Developing 


a) School and teacher leaders are beginning to engage teachers in a conversation about aligning plans to 
data.  
b) Teacher leaders and coaches support teachers’ use of instructional practices and strategies that are 
aligned to plans to provide instructional interventions to students, or teacher leaders and coaches are 
beginning to support the alignment of teachers’ instruction to newly developed plans.  
c) Teacher leaders and coaches are beginning to work with teachers to establish short or long-term goals 
for groups of students.  


 Ineffective 


a) School and teacher leaders do not support or engage teachers in a conversation about aligning plans 
to data.  
b) Teacher leaders and coaches do not support teachers in the use of instructional practices and 
strategies aligned to plans, or teachers are not providing instructional interventions to students.  
c) Teachers have not created goals for groups of students, and there is no plan for teacher leaders and 
coaches to support this effort.  


Please indicate the evidence used to 
determine the rating.   
Check all that apply. 
 


X   Classroom Observations – # Visited:  __20___ 
X    Interviews with Students –  #:  _36____ 
      Interviews with Support Staff – #:  _____ 
X    Interviews with Teachers –  #:  __8___  
X    Interviews with Parents/Guardians –  #:  __6       
X    Other: Collaboration w District Level Lap Team 
 


 Documents Reviewed:  
Student discipline data, IEPs for students with 
disabilities, RtI procedures and protocols, 
District and building vision and mission 
statements, District Strategic plan, School 
Improvement Plan 


 


If the SOP rating is Effective, Developing or Ineffective, please provide a response in the areas below. 
Actions in this area to be taken to 
improve the identified subgroup(s) 
student performance levels. 
 


• Continue to support vertical team meetings twice a month to examine student work against 
grade level expectations (CCLS-Common Core Learning Standards) and use the outcomes to 
plan for instruction; specific focus on work from students with disabilities. Continue utilizing 







  


 13 


LASW (Looking at Student Work) protocol. 
• Lead teachers (members of Curriculum Council) will facilitate the LASW (Looking at Student 


Work) at faculty meetings. 
• Develop a comprehensive system for Response to Intervention. 


Describe the district resources to be 
used to implement the actions in 
this area to improve the identified 
subgroup(s) student performance 
levels. 
 


• Support from Director of Curriculum & Instruction, Director of Special Education, Director of 
Pupil Services, building Principal and Assistant Principal. 


• Time to work in vertical teams. 


Describe the professional 
development activities planned to 
support the implementation of the 
actions in this area. 


• Professional development for administrators regarding implementing Response to 
Interventions. 


• Professional development relating to Tier 2 and Tier 3 interventions. 
• Professional development relating to LASW (Looking at Student Work). 


 
 


Rating Statement of Practice 4.3: Teachers provide coherent, and appropriately aligned Common Core Learning Standards (CCLS)-based 
instruction that leads to multiple points of access for all students.  


 Highly Effective 


a) Teachers use instructional practices that are systematic and explicit, based on sequential lesson plans 
appropriately aligned to CCLS (or content based standards), and reflective of the CCLS SHIFTS to instruct 
all groups of students.  
b) Teachers stimulate deep levels of thinking and questioning in students through the use of adaptive 
CCLS (or content based standards) instructional materials that contain high levels of text and content 
complexity and multiple strategies to provide a wide variety of ways to engage in learning.  


 Effective 
a) Teachers use instructional practices appropriately aligned to CCLS (or content based standards) lesson 
plans are reflective of the CCLS SHIFTS to instruct all groups of students.  
b) Teachers stimulate student thinking by asking questions through the use of adaptive CCLS (or content-
based standards) instructional materials that contain high levels of text and content complexity.  


X Developing 


a) Teachers are beginning to develop lesson plans that are appropriately aligned to CCLS (or content 
based standards) and reflective of the CCLS SHIFTS to inform their instructional practices, or some 
teachers use instructional practices aligned to CCLS lesson plans and reflective of the CCLS SHIFTS in 
specific content areas.  
b) Teachers across the school do not consistently ask higher-order thinking questions, or the instructional 
materials do not contain high levels of text and content complexity.  


 Ineffective 
a) Teacher instruction is not aligned to CCLS or content-based standards and not based on lesson plans.  
b) Teachers use strategies and ask questions that require only basic knowledge of the subject and limit 
ways in which students are able to acquire learning by providing a single point of access for all students.  


Please indicate the evidence used to 
determine the rating.   
Check all that apply. 
 


X   Classroom Observations – # Visited:  __20___ 
X    Interviews with Students –  #:  _36____ 
      Interviews with Support Staff – #:  _____ 
X    Interviews with Teachers –  #:  __8___  
X    Interviews with Parents/Guardians –  #:  __6       
X    Other: Collaboration w District Level Lap Team 


 Documents Reviewed:  
Student discipline data, IEPs for students with 
disabilities, RtI procedures and protocols, 
District and building vision and mission 
statements, District Strategic plan, School 
Improvement Plan 


 


If the SOP rating is Effective, Developing or Ineffective, please provide a response in the areas below. 


Actions in this area to be taken to 
improve the identified subgroup(s) 
student performance levels. 
 


• Develop an exemplar/model classroom using the workshop model for purposes of peer 
observation and to develop our capacity for delivering Tier 2 interventions in the classroom. 


• Continue to provide time and compensation for teachers to attend Boot camp, summer 
curriculum work, co-teaching professional development, and other PD offered throughout the 
year. 


• Provide teachers with exemplar lesson planning templates, EQUIP rubric to align lesson 
planning to CCLS (Common Core Learning Standards), use early release time to unpack the 
modules and individual lessons within module, with a specific focus on differentiation and 
scaffolding. 


• Co-teaching staff sharing examples of differentiated lessons with all staff followed by 
discussion regarding strategies to give access to general education curriculum to students with 
disabilities. 


• Utilize the common definition of Tier one core instruction (developed during 2013-14 school 
year) to develop consistency and effective practice. 


• Close reading protocols will be used in all content and special subject areas 







  


 14 


Describe the district resources to be 
used to implement the actions in 
this area to improve the identified 
subgroup(s) student performance 
levels. 
 


• Support from Director of Curriculum & Instruction, Director of Special Education, Director of 
Pupil Services, building Principal and Assistant Principal. 


• Funding to support professional development. 
• DDI process. 
• Time to work in vertical teams. 


Describe the professional 
development activities planned to 
support the implementation of the 
actions in this area. 


• Professional development for administrators regarding implementing Response to 
Interventions. 


• Professional development relating to Tier 2 and Tier 3 interventions. 
• Professional development in differentiated instruction. 
• Professional development in the workshop model. 
• DDI (Data Driven Instruction) process. 


 
Rating Statement of Practice 4.4: Teachers and students work together to implement a program/plan to create a learning environment that 


is responsive to students’ varied experiences and tailored to the strengths and needs of all students.  


 Highly Effective 


a) Teachers use a program/plan that contributes to positive reinforcements of behaviors by using 
behavioral expectations that are explicitly taught and promotes an environment in which students are 
citizens of their class, and there is a common understanding of how one is treated and treats others.  
b) Teachers work together with students across the school to acknowledge diversity, provide access to 
learning and social opportunities, and encourage students to have a voice in their educational 
experience.  
c) Teachers foster student buy-in and adapt to the changing needs of the student population and 
collaborate with other teachers to create thoughtful learning environments that incorporate student 
values and perspectives.  


 Effective 


a) Teachers use a program/plan that promotes a common understanding of the classroom environment 
envisioned by the school community and explicitly teaches students behavioral expectations and 
recognition of acceptable and safe behaviors.  
b) Teachers work together with students to use strategies that acknowledge diverse groups of students 
and their needs.  
c) Teachers foster student understanding and adapt to the changing needs of the student population and 
create thoughtful learning environments that incorporate student values and perspectives.  


X Developing 


a) Teachers have a program/plan for acceptable student expectations and are developing strategies for 
the program/plan to be consistently enforced or recognized by students, or teachers have a 
program/plan for acceptable student expectations, but do not enforce it.  
b) Some teachers use strategies that acknowledge diverse groups of students and their needs, or 
teachers are developing strategies that acknowledge diverse groups of students and their needs.  
c) Teachers are discussing strategies that address the changing needs of the student population and 
reflect student values and perspectives.  


 Ineffective 


a) Teachers do not have a program/plan that establishes acceptable classroom expectations for 
behavior.  
b) Teachers’ strategies do not acknowledge diverse groups of students and their needs.  
c) Teachers do not use strategies that address the changing needs of the student population and reflect 
student values and perspectives.  


Please indicate the evidence used to 
determine the rating.   
Check all that apply. 
 


X   Classroom Observations – # Visited:  __20___ 
X    Interviews with Students –  #:  _36____ 
      Interviews with Support Staff – #:  _____ 
X    Interviews with Teachers –  #:  __8___  
X    Interviews with Parents/Guardians –  #:  __6       
X    Other: Collaboration w District Level Lap Team 


 Documents Reviewed:  
Student discipline data, IEPs for students with 
disabilities, RtI procedures and protocols, 
district and building vision and mission 
statements, District Strategic plan, School 
Improvement Plan 


 


If the SOP rating is Effective, Developing or Ineffective, please provide a response in the areas below. 


Actions in this area to be taken to 
improve the identified subgroup(s) 
student performance levels. 
 


• PBIS team will continue to meet monthly; add parent & student to PBIS team, if possible. 
• PBIS coaches will attend coach’s roundtables. 
• Homeroom announcements will continue to include strategies for supporting the building-wide 


expectations: Be safe, be responsible, be safe, be kind. 
• Use data compiled from SET (School Evaluation Tool) to inform decisions relating to 


implementation of PBIS. 
Describe the district resources to be 
used to implement the actions in 
this area to improve the identified 


• Support from Director of Curriculum & Instruction, Director of Special Education, Director of 
Pupil Services, building Principal and Assistant Principal. 


• Time for PBIS team meetings. 







  


 15 


subgroup(s) student performance 
levels. 
 
Describe the professional 
development activities planned to 
support the implementation of the 
actions in this area. 


• Discussion of strategies for teaching and re-teaching of building-wide expectations. 


Rating Statement of Practice 4.5: Teachers inform planning and foster student participation in their own learning process by using a variety 
of summative and formative data sources (e.g., screening, interim measures, and progress monitoring).  


 Highly Effective 


a) Teachers use a wide variety of relevant data to create adaptive lesson plans that account for student 
grouping and determine the appropriate intensity and duration of instruction.  
b) Teachers use summative and formative assessments, including screening, progress monitoring, 
interim measures and outcome assessments, to develop highly dynamic and responsive plans based on 
students’ strengths and needs.  
c) Teachers provide frequent and relevant feedback to students based on the analysis of timely data, and 
students draw on the feedback so that they can reflect upon and assess their own progress.  


 Effective 


a) Teachers use data to create targeted plans and adjust student groupings and instructional strategies 
for most students.  
b) Teachers use summative and formative assessment data to inform instructional decision making, 
including student grouping and instructional strategies.  
c) Teachers provide frequent feedback to students based on the analysis of timely data and provide 
students with next steps for students to take to progress.  


X Developing 


a) Teachers are beginning to use plans for adjusting student groupings and instructional strategies.  
b) Teachers are in the process of using summative and formative assessments that inform instructional 
decision making, or the practice of using data sources and analyzing the information to inform 
instructional decision making is inconsistent.  
c) Teachers provide limited data-based feedback to students.  


 Ineffective 
a) Teachers do not have or use plans for grouping students and adjusting their instruction.  
b) Teachers do not use summative and formative assessments to inform instructional decision making.  
c) Teachers provide feedback that is not purposeful or based on data.  


Please indicate the evidence used to 
determine the rating.   
Check all that apply. 
 


X   Classroom Observations – # Visited:  __20___ 
X    Interviews with Students –  #:  _36____ 
      Interviews with Support Staff – #:  _____ 
X    Interviews with Teachers –  #:  __8___  
X    Interviews with Parents/Guardians –  #:  __6       
X    Other: Collaboration w District Level Lap Team 


 Documents Reviewed:  
Student discipline data, IEPs for students with 
disabilities, RtI procedures and protocols, 
District and building vision and mission 
statements, District Strategic plan, School 
Improvement Plan 


 


If the SOP rating is Effective, Developing or Ineffective, please provide a response in the areas below. 


Actions in this area to be taken to 
improve the identified subgroup(s) 
student performance levels. 
 


• Interim assessments & formative assessment will provide progress data which will be used to 
inform instruction and RtI (Response to Intervention) processes. 


• Continue to support vertical team meetings twice a month to examine student work against 
grade level expectations (CCLS-Common Core Learning Standards) and use the outcomes to 
plan for instruction; specific focus on work from students with disabilities.  Continue utilizing 
LASW (Looking at Student Work) protocol. 


• Use of mid and end of module assessments for ELA and Math. 
Describe the district resources to be 
used to implement the actions in 
this area to improve the identified 
subgroup(s) student performance 
levels. 


• Support from Director of Curriculum & Instruction, Director of Special Education, Director of 
Pupil Services, building Principal and Assistant Principal. 


• Time to meet in vertical teams. 


Describe the professional 
development activities planned to 
support the implementation of the 
actions in this area. 


• Continued professional development on formative assessment. 
• Professional development relating to LASW protocol. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







  


 16 


Tenet 5 - Student Social and Emotional Developmental Health: The school community identifies, promotes, and supports social and emotional 
development by designing systems and experiences that lead to healthy relationships and a safe, respectful environment that is conducive to 
learning for all constituents. 


Rating Statement of Practice 5.2: The school leader establishes overarching systems and understandings of how to support and sustain 
student social and emotional developmental health and academic success.  


 Highly Effective 


a) The school leader, using a distributive leadership model, establishes a deliberate system, understood 
and followed by all staff members, that allows each student to be well known by a designated adult and 
positively reinforces academic success for all students.  
b) The school leader ensures that all staff members know and use a strategic and comprehensive system 
for referral and support for all students that includes researched-based programs and practices intended 
to promote academic success, family engagement, and student emotional health and wellness.  
c) The school leader ensures that all stakeholders strategically use data to identify areas of need, 
cultivates purposeful partnerships to promote student social and emotional health and academic 
achievement, and leverages internal or external resources to support and sustain the system.  


 Effective 


a) The school leader, together with staff, establishes a system that allows each student to be known by a 
designated adult and positively reinforces academic success for all students.  
b) The school leader ensures that all staff knows and uses research-based programs and practices for 
referral and support for all students that address social and emotional developmental health and 
academic success.  
c) The school leader ensures that all staff members use data to identify areas of need and leverages 
internal resources to promote student social and emotional developmental health.  


X Developing 


a) The school leader is working with staff to develop a system that will allow each student to be known 
well by an adult, or the system that exists is inconsistently practiced by staff members.  
b) The school leader is developing a system of referral and support that addresses the social and 
emotional developmental health and academic success of students, or the system that exists is not 
consistently used across the school.  
c) The school leader is developing or improving the mechanism for staff members to use data to identify 
areas of need connected to student social and emotional developmental health, or data is used by some 
staff members to promote student social and emotional developmental health.  


 Ineffective 


a) The school leader has not prioritized the development of an effective system that will allow each 
student to be known by an adult.  
b) The school leader has not developed a system of referral and support, or the system in place does not 
address the needs of the students.  
c) The school leader has not made the use of data a priority in identifying student areas of need 
connected to social and emotional developmental health.  


Please indicate the evidence used to 
determine the rating.   
Check all that apply. 
 


X   Classroom Observations – # Visited:  __20___ 
X    Interviews with Students –  #:  _36____ 
      Interviews with Support Staff – #:  _____ 
X    Interviews with Teachers –  #:  __8___  
X    Interviews with Parents/Guardians –  #:  __6       
X    Other: Collaboration w District Level Lap Team 


 Documents Reviewed:  
Student discipline data, IEPs for students with 
disabilities, RtI procedures and protocols, 
District and building vision and mission 
statements, District Strategic plan, School 
Improvement Plan 


 


If the SOP rating is Effective, Developing or Ineffective, please provide a response in the areas below. 


Actions in this area to be taken to 
improve the identified subgroup(s) 
student performance levels. 
 


• Continue implementing discipline ladder for consistency with student management. 
• Continue implementation of TCIS (Therapeutic Crisis Intervention for Schools), including follow-


up refresher courses with a TCIS trainer. 
• Periodic review of discipline referral data. 
• Homeroom period for check-in and connection with students at the beginning and end of the 


day. 
• HOW (Habits of Work) rubric for performance expectations around quality work, collaboration, 


and participation in class. Students are grouped for interventions based on data from the HOW 
reports. HOW data is also used for eligibility for school events and extracurricular activities.  


• PBIS team will continue to meet monthly; add parent & student to PBIS team, if possible. 
• PBIS coaches will attend coach’s roundtables. 


Describe the district resources to be 
used to implement the actions in 
this area to improve the identified 
subgroup(s) student performance 
levels. 
 


• Cougar Pride Team (PBIS) 
• Time to review and analyze discipline referral data 
• School website for communication regarding discipline ladder, PBIS, TCIS (Therapeutic Crisis 


Intervention for Schools) , and HOW (Habits of Work) rubric. 


Describe the professional • TCIS(Therapeutic Crisis Intervention for Schools)  refresher. 







  


 17 


development activities planned to 
support the implementation of the 
actions in this area. 


• Cougar Pride Planning (PBIS) over the summer. 
• HOW introduced and implemented through professional development at faculty meetings. 
• Response to Intervention Meetings to share best practices and strategies . 


Rating 
Statement of Practice 5.3: The school articulates and systematically promotes a vision for social and emotional developmental 
health that is aligned to a curriculum or program that provides learning experiences and a safe and healthy school environment for 
families, teachers, and students.  


 Highly Effective 


a) There is a comprehensive and coherent curriculum or program that incorporates research-based 
practices aligned to the school vision that enables students to articulate a sense of belonging and 
ownership in their school community and facilitates the teaching of student social and emotional 
developmental health.  
b) All stakeholders receive professional development support to consistently act upon a shared 
understanding of skills and behaviors that address the social and emotional developmental health needs 
of students linked to academic success and promote the school community's vision of a safe and healthy 
environment.  
c) There is a comprehensive plan to monitor and revise the professional development provided 
stakeholders to build adult capacity to facilitate learning experiences to support student social and 
emotional developmental health within a safe and healthy environment.  


X Effective 


a) There is a curriculum or program that incorporates research-based practices aligned to the school 
vision that facilitates the teaching of student social and emotional developmental health.  
b) The school staff receives professional development support to use skills and behaviors that address 
the social and emotional developmental health needs of students and promote the school community's 
vision of a safe and healthy environment.  
c) There is a plan to monitor and revise the professional development provided staff that builds adult 
capacity to support student social and emotional developmental health within a safe and healthy 
environment.  


 Developing 


a) The school is developing a curriculum or program to support and promote the teaching of student 
social and emotional developmental health.  
b) The school is developing ways to support the stakeholders’ understanding of the skills and behaviors 
that address the social and emotional developmental health of students, or some staff members use 
skills and behaviors that address social and emotional developmental health needs of students.  
c) The school is beginning to monitor the professional development plan to build adult capacity to 
support student social and emotional developmental health.  


 Ineffective 


a) The school does not have a curriculum or a program in place to support the teaching of student social 
and emotional developmental health, or the program in place does not meet student needs.  
b) The school has not identified skills and behaviors that address the social and emotional developmental 
health of students, and there are no plans to provide support aligned to this work.  
c) The school does not provide professional development to build adult capacity to support student 
social and emotional developmental health.  


Please indicate the evidence used to 
determine the rating.   
Check all that apply. 
 


X   Classroom Observations – # Visited:  __20___ 
X    Interviews with Students –  #:  _36____ 
      Interviews with Support Staff – #:  _____ 
X    Interviews with Teachers –  #:  __8___  
X    Interviews with Parents/Guardians –  #:  __6       
X    Other: Collaboration w District Level Lap Team 


 Documents Reviewed:  
Student discipline data, IEPs for students with 
disabilities, RtI procedures and protocols, 
District and building vision and mission 
statements, District Strategic plan, School 
Improvement Plan 


 


If the SOP rating is Effective, Developing or Ineffective, please provide a response in the areas below. 


Actions in this area to be taken to 
improve the identified subgroup(s) 
student performance levels. 


• Continue implementing discipline ladder for consistency with student management. 
• Continue implementation of TCIS (Therapeutic Crisis Intervention for Schools), including follow-


up refresher courses with a TCIS trainer. 
• Periodic review of discipline referral data. 
• Homeroom period for check-in and connection with students at the beginning and end of the 


day. 
• HOW (Habits of Work) rubric for performance expectations around quality work, collaboration, 


and participation in class. Students are grouped for interventions based on data from the HOW 
reports. HOW data is also used for eligibility for school events and extracurricular activities.  


• PBIS team will continue to meet monthly; add parent & student to PBIS team, if possible. 
• PBIS coaches will attend coach’s roundtables. 


Describe the district resources to be 
used to implement the actions in 
this area to improve the identified 
subgroup(s) student performance 


• Cougar Pride Team (PBIS). 
• Time to review and analyze discipline referral data. 
• School website for communication regarding discipline ladder, PBIS, TCIS(Therapeutic Crisis 







  


 18 


levels. Intervention for Schools) , and HOW (Habits of Work) rubric. 
• Town Hall meetings for Character Trait of the month, student and staff recognition for positive 


behavior  
Describe the professional 
development activities planned to 
support the implementation of the 
actions in this area. 


• Cougar Pride Planning (PBIS) over the summer. 
• HOW introduced and implemented through PD at faculty meetings. 
• Response to Intervention meetings to share best practices and strategies. 


 


Rating 
Statement of Practice 5.4: All school stakeholders work together to develop a common understanding of the importance of their 
contributions in creating a school community that is safe, conducive to learning, and fostering of a sense of ownership for providing 
social and emotional developmental health supports tied to the school’s vision.  


 Highly Effective 


a) The school community collaborated to develop and uses a plan that incorporates protocols and 
processes to communicate the important roles and contributions of all stakeholders in ensuring 
appropriate supports are provided to all students.  
b) Across the school community, students, teachers and parents have a voice in the decision-making 
process for developing their school culture and work together and have active roles in ensuring the 
school's vision pertaining to social emotional developmental health is achieved.  
c) The school community has implemented a system for monitoring and responding to student social and 
emotional developmental health needs, which ensures that adaptive measures are implemented specific 
to individual student needs when growth is not actualized.  


 Effective 


a) The school community has and uses a plan that incorporates protocols and processes to address 
stakeholders’ roles in contributing to how student supports are provided to all groups of students.  
b) Across the school community, students, teachers and parents work together and have an active role in 
ensuring the school’s vision pertaining to student social and emotional developmental health is achieved.  
c) The school community has implemented a system for monitoring and responding to student social and 
developmental health needs, which is used to support teachers as they address student needs.  


X Developing 


a) The school community is developing protocols and processes for stakeholders to discuss their role in 
providing appropriate student supports for all groups of students.  
b) Across the school community students, teachers and parents inconsistently contribute towards 
ensuring the school's vision pertaining to student social and emotional developmental health is achieved.  
c) The school community is developing a system for monitoring and responding to student social and 
emotional developmental health needs.  


 Ineffective 


a) The school community has no protocols and processes in place to identify stakeholders’ roles, or the 
protocols and processes that exist are not aligned to student supports.  
b) Across the school community, students, teachers and parents do not understand or act on their role in 
ensuring the school's vision pertaining to student social and emotional developmental health is achieved.  
c) The school community has not prioritized the development of a system to monitor and respond to 
student social and emotional developmental health needs.  


Please indicate the evidence used to 
determine the rating.   
Check all that apply. 
 


X   Classroom Observations – # Visited:  __20___ 
X    Interviews with Students –  #:  _36____ 
      Interviews with Support Staff – #:  _____ 
X    Interviews with Teachers –  #:  __8___  
X    Interviews with Parents/Guardians –  #:  __6       
X    Other: Collaboration w District Level Lap Team 


 Documents Reviewed:  
Student discipline data, IEPs for students with 
disabilities, RtI procedures and protocols, 
District and building vision and mission 
statements, District Strategic plan, School 
Improvement Plan 


 


If the SOP rating is Effective, Developing or Ineffective, please provide a response in the areas below. 


Actions in this area to be taken to 
improve the identified subgroup(s) 
student performance levels. 


• Continued implementation of Response to Intervention process. 
• Continue implementing discipline ladder for consistency with student management. 
• Continue implementation of TCIS (Therapeutic Crisis Intervention for Schools) , including 


follow-up refresher courses with a TCIS trainer. 
• Periodic review of discipline referral data. 
• Homeroom period for check-in and connection with students at the beginning and end of the 


day. 
• HOW (Habits of Work) rubric for performance expectations around quality work, collaboration, 


and participation in class. Students are grouped for interventions based on data from the HOW 
reports. HOW data is also used for eligibility for school events and extracurricular activities.  


• Include questions around student management and social/emotional development in the 
parent, staff, and student surveys that will be part of the school improvement plan process. 


• PBIS team will continue to meet monthly; add parent & student to PBIS team, if possible. 
• PBIS coaches will attend coach’s roundtables. 







  


 19 


 


Describe the district resources to be 
used to implement the actions in 
this area to improve the identified 
subgroup(s) student performance 
levels. 


• Cougar Pride Team (PBIS). 
• Time to review and analyze discipline referral data. 
• School website for communication regarding discipline ladder, PBIS, TCIS (Therapeutic Crisis 


Intervention for Schools), and HOW (Habits of Work) rubric. 
• Town Hall meetings for Character Trait of the month, student and staff recognition for positive 


behavior. 
Describe the professional 
development activities planned to 
support the implementation of the 
actions in this area. 


• Cougar Pride Planning (PBIS) over the summer. 
• HOW introduced and implemented through professional development at faculty meetings. 
• Response to Interventionmeetings to share best practices and strategies. 


 
Rating Statement of Practice 5.5: The school leader and student support staff work together with teachers to establish structures to 


support the use of data to respond to student social and emotional developmental health needs.  


 Highly Effective 


a) The school leader, in collaboration with stakeholders, has a plan with systems and structures (time, 
space and resources) for how to collect, analyze, and use a wide variety of data to address student social 
and emotional developmental health needs.  
b) The school community uses a strategic plan based on data to deliver and monitor timely services and 
supports to students.  


X Effective 
a) The school leader, in collaboration with student support staff, has a plan with structures (time, space 
and resources) to use data to address student academic and social emotional developmental health 
needs.  
b) The school community uses a plan based on data to deliver services and supports to students.  


 Developing 
a) The school leader and the support staff are developing a plan for teachers to begin to understand how 
to use data to address student social and emotional developmental health needs.  
b) The school community collects data and is developing a plan to address ways to use the data to 
support students.  


 Ineffective 
a) The school has no specific plan for how to use data to address student social emotional developmental 
health needs.  
b) The school community has not prioritized the need for using data to support students.  


Please indicate the evidence used to 
determine the rating.   
Check all that apply. 
 


X   Classroom Observations – # Visited:  __20___ 
X    Interviews with Students –  #:  _36____ 
      Interviews with Support Staff – #:  _____ 
X    Interviews with Teachers –  #:  __8___  
X    Interviews with Parents/Guardians –  #:  __6       
X    Other: Collaboration w District Level Lap Team 


 Documents Reviewed:  
Student discipline data, IEPs for students with 
disabilities, RtI procedures and protocols, 
District and building vision and mission 
statements, District Strategic plan, School 
Improvement Plan 


 


If the SOP rating is Effective, Developing or Ineffective, please provide a response in the areas below. 
Actions in this area to be taken to 
improve the identified subgroup(s) 
student performance levels. 
 


• Continue implementation of Response to Intervention process 
• Continue review of discipline referral data. 
• Continue HOW (habits of work) data review and grouping of students for intervention. 


Describe the district resources to be 
used to implement the actions in 
this area to improve the identified 
subgroup(s) student performance 
levels. 
 


• Response to Intervention Team 
• Cougar Pride Team (PBIS) 
• School Counseling and mental health staff  


Describe the professional 
development activities planned to 
support the implementation of the 
actions in this area. 


• TCIS (therapeutic Crisis Intervention for Schools) initial and refresher training. 
• Professional development for paraprofessionals around fostering independence, conflict cycle, 


and supporting challenging behaviors. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 







  


 20 


Tenet 6 - Family and Community Engagement: The school creates a culture of partnership where families, community members and school staff 
work together to share in the responsibility for student academic progress and social-emotional growth and well-being. 


Rating Statement of Practice 6.2: The school leader ensures that regular communication with students and families fosters their high 
expectations for student academic achievement.  


 Highly Effective 


a) The school leader, in collaboration with the staff, ensures that staff members are knowledgeable 
about the school's priority and plan for students to graduate from high school and complete 
postsecondary education (college, CTE) with advanced competence, and school staff regularly 
communicate this priority to students, parents, and community leaders in ways that are appropriate for 
the grade level of the students.  
b) The school community implements proactively the plan to create diverse and meaningful 
opportunities for engaging students, families, and community stakeholders in the conversation regarding 
high expectations for student academic achievement and uses multiple points of entry to provide tips 
and tools focused on student learning and development.  
c) The school leader and community review and assess routinely how parents respond to the efforts to 
build family-school partnerships to foster high expectations for student academic achievement and make 
timely adjustments if strategies are not working.  


X Effective 


a) The school leader makes it a school-wide priority for all students and their families to be aware of the 
school-wide expectations and plan pertaining to graduating from the school and provides age 
appropriate information about college and postsecondary CTE programs to students and their families.  
b) The school community implements the plan to foster conversations with students and families 
regarding high expectations for student academic achievement and provides tips and tools focused on 
student learning and development.  
c) The school staff reviews and assesses how parents respond to the efforts to build family-school 
relationships and makes periodic adjustments to those efforts if strategies are not working.  


 Developing 


a) Most of the school staff members are knowledgeable about the expectations for student academic 
achievement, or the school leader is developing a plan to communicate the expectations to students and 
families.  
b) The school community is beginning to use a plan to encourage students and families to learn about 
the expectations for student academic achievement, or a limited number of staff members are having 
these conversations with students and families.  
c) The school staff is working to adjust their efforts to build family-school relationships, or only some 
staff regularly review and adjust their efforts to building relationships to foster high expectations for 
student academic achievement.  


 Ineffective 


a) The school leader has not prioritized communicating high expectations for student academic 
achievement, and there is little or no evidence that staff communicates these expectations to students 
and families.  
b) The school community does not promote or engage students and families in conversations regarding 
student academic expectations.  
c) The school staff is neither examining nor adjusting the school’s efforts to build relationships with 
students and families to foster high expectations for student academic achievement.  


Please indicate the evidence used to 
determine the rating.   
Check all that apply. 
 


X   Classroom Observations – # Visited:  __20___ 
X    Interviews with Students –  #:  _36____ 
      Interviews with Support Staff – #:  _____ 
X    Interviews with Teachers –  #:  __8___  
X    Interviews with Parents/Guardians –  #:  __6       
X    Other: Collaboration w District Level Lap Team 


 Documents Reviewed:  
Student discipline data, IEPs for students with 
disabilities, RtI procedures and protocols, 
District and building vision and mission 
statements, District Strategic plan, School 
Improvement Plan 


 


If the SOP rating is Effective, Developing or Ineffective, please provide a response in the areas below. 


Actions in this area to be taken to 
improve the identified subgroup(s) 
student performance levels. 
 


• Plan and implement 2 community math nights and 2 community ELA nights to communicate 
with parents and other family members about supporting literacy and math concepts and skills. 


• Continue to utilize the building website and building newsletter to communicate with families 
and the community regarding school news. 


• Continue to use positive referrals followed by parent “good news” phone calls. 
• Conduct a survey of parents & community members in the spring as an avenue for monitoring 


their perception of communication. 
• Case managers of students with disabilities will make contact with families at least 2 times 


each semester with a positive message. 
Describe the district resources to be 
used to implement the actions in 
this area to improve the identified 
subgroup(s) student performance 


• District web page 
• Time for community nights and to make phone calls 
• Building newsletter 
• Mailing of the survey 







  


 21 


levels. 
 
Describe the professional 
development activities planned to 
support the implementation of the 
actions in this area. 


• NO PD needed for this area 


 
Rating Statement of Practice 6.3: The school engages in effective planning and reciprocal communication with family and community 


stakeholders so that student strength and needs are identified and used to augment learning.  


 Highly Effective 


a) The school has a comprehensive plan to use multiple, interactive communication tools to provide 
families regular opportunities for purposeful, strategic, and authentic dialogue about school and student 
issues and concerns.  
b) The school staff has a shared commitment to use consistently the plan for communicating with 
parents and stakeholders (i.e., translating all documents in multiple languages and communicating in 
variety of ways) to ensure that they clearly understand the school’s priorities concerning student 
progress, achievement, and needs.  
c) The school staff regularly monitors the effectiveness of their communication to and solicitations of 
family feedback in all languages concerning student achievement, needs, issues, and concerns using 
multiple interactive communication tools and makes revisions to the plan when necessary.  


 Effective 


a) The school staff has a plan to use multiple tools to communicate with families about school and 
student issues and concerns.  
b) The school staff uses a plan to communicate with parents (i.e., translating all documents in multiple 
languages and communicating in a variety of ways) concerning student progress, achievement, and 
needs.  
c) The school staff monitors the effectiveness of its communication in all languages and responds to 
family feedback concerning issues and concerns.  


X Developing 


a) The school is creating a plan for communicating with families about school and student issues and 
concerns in pertinent languages, or the school communicates with families about school and student 
issues and concerns using the most prevalent languages.  
b) The school staff is developing a mechanism for sending documents to families in their native 
languages, or the school staff translates select documents into languages they identify as prevalent.  
c) The school is beginning to have conversations about the effectiveness of its strategies for 
communicating with parents.  


 Ineffective 
a) The school communicates with families about school and student issues and concerns without 
considering translation needs.  
b) The school staff does not send translations of documents to families.  
c) The school does not reflect on its strategies for communicating with parents.  


Please indicate the evidence used to 
determine the rating.   
Check all that apply. 
 


X   Classroom Observations – # Visited:  __20___ 
X    Interviews with Students –  #:  _36____ 
      Interviews with Support Staff – #:  _____ 
X    Interviews with Teachers –  #:  __8___  
X    Interviews with Parents/Guardians –  #:  __6       
X    Other: Collaboration w District Level Lap Team 


 Documents Reviewed:  
Student discipline data, IEPs for students with 
disabilities, RtI procedures and protocols, 
District and building vision and mission 
statements, District Strategic plan, School 
Improvement Plan 


 


If the SOP rating is Effective, Developing or Ineffective, please provide a response in the areas below. 


Actions in this area to be taken to 
improve the identified subgroup(s) 
student performance levels. 
 


• Plan and implement 2 community math nights and 2 community ELA nights to communicate 
with parents and other family members. 


• Continue to utilize the building website and building newsletter to communicate with families 
and the community regarding school news. 


• Continue to use positive referrals followed by parent “good news” phone calls. 
• Conduct a survey of parents in the spring as an avenue for monitoring their perception of 


communication. 
• Case managers of students with disabilities will make contact with families at least 2 times 


each quarter with a positive message. 
• Utilize the parent phone call protocol for positive parent communication. 
• Utilize translator to ensure that communications are delivered in appropriate languages to 


maximize communication. 
Describe the district resources to be 
used to implement the actions in 
this area to improve the identified 


• District web page 
• Time for community nights and to make phone calls 
• Building newsletter 







  


 22 


subgroup(s) student performance 
levels. 
 


• Mailing of the survey 


Describe the professional 
development activities planned to 
support the implementation of the 
actions in this area. 


• No PD needed for this area. 


 
Rating Statement of Practice 6.4: The school community partners with families and community agencies to promote and provide training 


across all areas (academic and social and emotional developmental health) to support student success.   


 Highly Effective 


a) The school leader, in collaboration with pertinent school staff and community agency partners, has 
developed a plan to ensure that all staff members understand how to create and sustain high levels of 
family engagement by teaching all parents ways to support student learning and growth.  
b) After consulting teachers, student support professionals, and representative parents, the school 
leader provides professional development to all school staff on how to actively seek and sustain 
partnerships with families and community organizations that are linked to the school’s plan for engaging 
parents to support student success.  


 Effective 


a) The school leader, in collaboration with pertinent school staff and community agency partners, has 
developed a plan to ensure that classroom teachers and guidance staff understand how to create and 
sustain family engagement by teaching a group of parents, representative of student demographics, 
ways to support student learning and growth.  
b) The school provides professional development to school staff on how to actively seek and sustain 
partnerships with families and community organizations that are linked to the school’s plan for engaging 
parents to support student success.  


X Developing 


a) The school leader is in the process of developing a plan to teach parents ways to support student 
learning and growth.  
b) The school is in the process of implementing a plan to provide professional development to school 
staff on how to develop partnerships with families and/or the community, or the staff is not fully 
implementing the strategies in the school’s plan.  


 Ineffective 
a) The school leader is not working on a plan to teach parents ways to support student learning and 
growth.  
b) The school does not provide professional development for staff concerning developing partnerships 
with families and/or the community.  


Please indicate the evidence used to 
determine the rating.   
Check all that apply. 
 


X   Classroom Observations – # Visited:  __20___ 
X    Interviews with Students –  #:  _36____ 
      Interviews with Support Staff – #:  _____ 
X    Interviews with Teachers –  #:  __8___  
X    Interviews with Parents/Guardians –  #:  __6       
X    Other: Collaboration w District Level Lap Team 


 Documents Reviewed:  
Student discipline data, IEPs for students with 
disabilities, RtI procedures and protocols, 
District and building vision and mission 
statements, District Strategic plan, School 
Improvement Plan 


 


If the SOP rating is Effective, Developing or Ineffective, please provide a response in the areas below. 


Actions in this area to be taken to 
improve the identified subgroup(s) 
student performance levels. 
 


• Plan and implement 2 community math nights and 2 community ELA nights to communicate 
with parents and other family members. 


• Continue to utilize the building website and building newsletter to communicate with families 
and the community regarding school news. 


• Continue to use positive referrals followed by parent “good news” phone calls. 
• Conduct a survey of parents in the spring as an avenue for monitoring their perception of 


communication. 
• Case managers of students with disabilities will make contact with families at least 2 times 


each quarter with a positive message. 
• Utilize the parent phone call protocol for positive parent communication. 


Describe the district resources to be 
used to implement the actions in 
this area to improve the identified 
subgroup(s) student performance 
levels. 


• District web page 
• Time for community nights and to make phone calls 
• Building newsletter 
• Mailing of the survey 


Describe the professional 
development activities planned to 
support the implementation of the 
actions in this area. 


• No PD needed for this area. 







  


 23 


Rating 
Statement of Practice 6.5: The school shares data in a way that promotes dialogue among parents, students, and school community 
members centered on student learning and success and encourages and empowers families to understand and use data to advocate 
for appropriate support services for their children.  


 Highly Effective 


a) School leaders, data specialists, student support professionals, program coordinators, and community 
agencies share data and integrate data systems in order to identify family needs and target appropriate 
support strategies.  
b) The entire school community ensures that student data is shared in a way that families can 
understand a child’s learning needs and successes, proactively advocate for their children, and partner 
with the school to provide appropriate student support.  


 Effective 
a) School leaders, data specialists, student support professionals, and program coordinators use data to 
identify family needs and target strategies to address them.  
b) The school community ensures that student data is shared in a way in which families can understand 
student learning needs and successes and are encouraged to advocate for student support.  


X Developing 


a) The school staff recognizes that there is a need to share and integrate data systems to identify family 
needs, and a plan is being developed to do so, or the school staff uses data but is not working with the 
school's partnerships to share and respond to data pertaining to family needs.  
b) The school community inconsistently shares data regarding student learning needs and success that 
families can access and understand.  


 Ineffective 
a) There is no evidence that school leaders, data specialists, student support professionals, and program 
coordinators have prioritized or recognized the need to share and integrate data systems.  
b) The school community does not share data with parents in ways they can understand.  


Please indicate the evidence used to 
determine the rating.   
Check all that apply. 
 


X   Classroom Observations – # Visited:  __20___ 
X    Interviews with Students –  #:  _36____ 
      Interviews with Support Staff – #:  _____ 
X    Interviews with Teachers –  #:  __8___  
X    Interviews with Parents/Guardians –  #:  __6       
X    Other: Collaboration w District Level Lap Team 


 Documents Reviewed:  
Student discipline data, IEPs for students with 
disabilities, RtI procedures and protocols, 
District and building vision and mission 
statements, District Strategic plan, School 
Improvement Plan 


 


If the SOP rating is Effective, Developing or Ineffective, please provide a response in the areas below. 


Actions in this area to be taken to 
improve the identified subgroup(s) 
student performance levels. 
 


• Plan and implement 2 community math nights and 2 community ELA nights to communicate 
with parents and other family members. 


• Continue to utilize the building website and building newsletter to communicate with families 
and the community regarding school news. 


• Continue to use positive referrals followed by parent “good news” phone calls. 
• Conduct a survey of parents in the spring as an avenue for monitoring their perception of 


communication. 
• Case managers of students with disabilities will make contact with families at least 2 times 


each quarter with a positive message. 
• Share achievement data at fall open house. 
• Include a link for data on the school web site. 


Describe the district resources to be 
used to implement the actions in 
this area to improve the identified 
subgroup(s) student performance 
levels. 
 


• District web page 
• Time for community nights and to make phone calls 
• Building newsletter 
• Mailing of the survey 


Describe the professional 
development activities planned to 
support the implementation of the 
actions in this area. 


• No PD needed for this area. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







  


 24 


 
Describe the process used to develop this plan pursuant to CR100.11. 
 
September 9, 2014-LAP meeting between Kathy Goolden, Director of Special Education and Hank Hann, 
Interim Superintendent 
 
September 10, 2014-LAP meeting at BOCES attended by district-level LAP team members, Kathy Goolden, 
Megan Paliotti, Melissa Phelps, Melanie Stevenson. 
 
September 15, 2014-meeting with Mark Mathews and Kristin DeFeo (Middle School principal and assistant 
principal) to update them on initial LAP meeting at BOCES. 
 
September 15, 2014-meeting between Kathy Goolden and Hank Hann-update on BOCES LAP meeting and 
discuss tentative LAP process. 
 
September 17, 2014-meeting of district-level LAP members-planning. 
 
September 18, 2014- meeting of district-level LAP members-planning. 
 
September 19, 2014-development of surveys for gathering information for LAP. 
 
September 22, 2014-meeting of district-level LAP team to review middle school data. 
 
September 22-26, 2014-conduct interviews with various stakeholder groups, e.g. parents of students with 
disabilities, students with disabilities, teachers, etc. 
 
September 22-October 3, 2014-classroom visits by district-level LAP team to gather information. 
 
October 2, 2014-review of all data from classroom visits and interviews. 
 
October 6, 2014-meeting of district-level LAP team to score rubric. 
 
October 7, 2014- meeting of district-level LAP team to score rubric. 
 
October 10, 2014-meeting of district-level LAP team-finish scoring rubric, begin development of action plan. 
 
October 14, 2014- meeting of district-level LAP team- development of action plan. 
 
October 15, 2014- meeting of district-level LAP team- development of action plan. 
 
October 16, 2014- meeting of district-level LAP team- development of action plan. 
 
October 21, 2014- meeting of district-level LAP team- development of action plan. 
 
October 22, 2014- meeting of district-level LAP team- development of action plan. 
 







  


 25 


October 23, 2014- meeting of district-level LAP team- development of action plan. 
 
October 29, 2014- meeting of district-level LAP team- development of action plan. 
 
November 3, 2014-Kathy Goolden & Melanie Stevenson reviewed LAP action plan with Tammy Jones from 
BOCES. 
 
November 3, 2014-Kathy Goolden presented LAP action plan to Curriculum Council for feedback. 
 
November 7, 2014-meeting between Kathy Goolden and Hank Hann to review LAP action plan. 
 
November 12, 2014-rubric and action plan submitted to the Board of Education for approval. 
 
November 18, 2014-LAP action plan presentation to the Board of Education. 
 
 
 
 


 
 


Provide any additional information that is relevant to the Local Assistance Plan but is not addressed in the tenets 
and/or SOPs. 
 
See attached School Improvement Plan below 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







  


 26 


Leavenworth Middle School - School Improvement Plan 


 


District Vision: 


The educational community of the North Rose-Wolcott Central School District believes that our students will learn and achieve at or above commencement level and 
have the tools necessary to fulfill their own personal goals and dreams. 


To achieve this vision, Leavenworth Middle School has created the following plan which addressed the district goals and priorities and articulates the steps each building 
will take to achieve those goals and priorities.  


District Goal #1: Student Achievement 


All North Rose-Wolcott students will demonstrate improved student achievement and increased college, career, and community readiness.  


This plan will address the following: 
-Effective Core Instruction 


-Response to Intervention: 3-tier system, research-based strategies, progress monitoring 
 -Setting clear instructional outcomes (Learning Targets) that are aligned with standards  


-Formative Assessment (Checking for Understanding) that drives instruction (DDI) 
-Assessment, grading, and reporting of student progress 
-Creation of a safe, positive, and engaging learning environment for all students 


-Students achieving proficiency level on district & state assessments 
-Achievement gaps that exist with race, gender, and students with disabilities  


Our building’s current state in this area is as follows: (INSERT DATA/NARRATIVE HERE) 


Our student achievement targets at each grade level are: (INSERT TARGETS HERE) 


LMS Goal #1: – Students will consistently utilize strategies for assessments for learning such as restating learning targets, tracking progress, analyzing models and 
determining criteria for success and using focused feedback in order to produce high quality work. 


Rationale: Assessment for learning will foster students taking responsibility for their own learning, and seeing themselves as keys to their own success.   Students can 
continually assess and improve the quality of their own work.  Current formative assessment data indicates that student work could reflect a significantly higher level of 
achievement and understanding of content. 


Faculty Learning Targets Structures and Leadership Actions Support  Data Points/Evidence for Monitoring 
Progress  


 1.  I can design and consistently help 
students understand learning targets 
aligned to Common Core and other 
standards 


 2. I can create and utilize a variety of 
assessments for learning. 


 3. I can design criteria lists and rubrics 
that are aligned to the Common Core 
Standards. 


 4. I can develop and use measureable 
learning targets to frame instruction, 
assessment, and communication about 


* Provide non-evaluative coaching on 
quality learning targets. 


*Provide non-evaluative coaching on 
creating and using assessments for 
learning. 


*Engage teachers in goal setting, 
learning, observation and data 
collection, and reflection. 


*Deliver PD based around developing 
assessments for learning. 


*Organize collaborative planning 


* Use the 5-8 ELA curriculum as an 
exemplar of embedding assessment for 
learning into daily instruction. 


*Provide specific examples of student 
engagement assessment practices. 


*Facilitate professional learning 
sessions to increase strategies and to 
debrief newly attempted assessment 
for learning practices. 


*Engage in observation and coaching 
to support new assessment practices. 


Faculty evidence: 


• Visible learning targets (on board, 
in discussion, on student work). 


• Criteria lists and rubrics designed 
by grade-level teams and 
supported by instructional 
coaches will be reviewed at 
department/team meetings 
monthly. 


• Periodic learning walks that focus 
on the use of learning targets. 







  


 27 


student progress in academics. 


 5. I can teach students to use 
assessment for learning strategies to 
close the gap between current 
performance and intended outcomes.   


6. I can teach students to  clarify and 
develop understanding of learning 
targets. 


7. I can teach students to give and 
receive descriptive feedback that is 
kind, specific, and helpful. 


8. I can facilitate focused revision of 
student work. 


9. I can engage students in self-
assessing their progress on learning 
targets. 


 


sessions to design common 
assessments across grade levels. 


*Begin planning a procedure for non-
evaluative peer reviews. 


*Facilitate PD in regards to assessment 
for learning.  


*Identify research/literature 
appropriate for leadership and whole 
staff. 


*Create an observational tool, i.e. 
“thanks for being on target.” 


Student evidence: 


•   Student feedback sheets and 
feedback protocols will be collected 
and analyzed by the SDMT. 


• A random sample of completed 
student writing assignments that 
includes multiple drafts will be 
collected and reviewed periodically 
by the SDMT. 


• Lead teachers will conduct student 
interviews through the use of 
questionnaire to determine if 
students are engaged in self-
assessment related to learning 
targets. 


 


LMS Goal #2: Students will improve their capacity to read complex text, answer text-dependent questions, and write using evidence through the implementation of the 
5-8 ELA Curriculum and literacy skill development in Social Studies, Science, Science, and all content areas. 


Rationale:  Student’s ability to read complete text, answer text-dependent questions and write using evidence is an essential skill identified in the Common Core State 
Standards and the implementation of the 5-8 ELA modules provides an effective vehicle for developing this skill. 


Faculty Learning Targets Structures and Leadership Actions Support  Data Points/Evidence for Monitoring 
Progress  


I can systematically provide instruction 
that promotes students ability to read 
complex text.  This systematic 
instruction includes components of 
Explicit Direct Instruction, John 
Hollingsworth. 


• I can draw from a variety of 
strategies that build my 
students’ capacity to read 
complex text, answer text-
dependent questions, and 
write using evidence. 


• I can implement the 5-8 ELA 
Curriculum. 


• I can track student growth 
relative to the reading of 
complex text. 


• I can monitor and adjust my 
practice based on 
assessment data and 
coaching feedback. 


• Procure necessary materials for 
the successful implementation of 
the 5-8 curriculum. 


• Work with individual teachers in 
the area of curriculum 
implementation and teaching 
students to read complex text. 


• Systematically collect common 
assessment data that targets the 
reading of complex text and 
provide user-friendly feedback to 
teachers. 


• Facilitate grade level 
learning sessions to increase 
strategies and to debrief 
newly attempted complex 
text reading strategies. 


• Lead teacher support of 
individual teachers in the 
area of teaching students to 
read complex text. 


• Provide feedback that 
targets student reading of 
complex text. 


• Create an informal 
observational tool to be 
used during learning walks. 


Faculty Evidence: 


• Teachers indicate that they have 
the necessary materials for the 
successful implementation of the 
5-8 ELA and Math Curriculum 
modules. 


• Learning Target Review with 
grade level teams indicates that 
sufficient attention has been 
given to the reading of complex 
text. 


• Observation Data indicates that 
the 5-8 ELA Curriculum is being 
implemented with fidelity and 
systematic attention is being give 
to the reading of complex text. 


• Students are reading complex 
text in Social Studies, Science and 
all content areas. 


Student Evidence: 







  


 28 


 


 


 


 


• Formative assessment data 
indicates that students are 
becoming increasingly more 
proficient reading complex text. 


• NYS assessment results indicate 
that increasing numbers of 
students in grades 5-8 
demonstrate proficiency in 
reading complex text. 


• Writing Class/Support (5/6) 


 


 


 


District Goal #2: Student Management 


Our goal at North Rose-Wolcott is for students to exhibit the following character traits in all settings: Be Safe, Be Kind, Be Respectful, Be Responsible.  
 
This plan will addresses the following:  
-Response to Intervention: system, research-based strategies, progress monitoring of student behaviors 
-explicit instruction for students and staff regarding expected student behaviors as part of PBIS 
-gaps with regard to race, gender, students with disabilities  
-increased communication with parents by the teacher regarding their student’s behavior in school (positive communication included) 
 
Our building’s current state in this area is as follows: (INSERT DATA/NARRATIVE HERE) 


e.g. Currently, 80% of student discipline referrals come from the cafeteria. We have PBIS matrix posted in the cafeteria and staff review and reinforce these on a regular 
basis….etc, etc. 


Our student management targets at each grade level are: (INSERT TARGETS HERE) 


e.g. Reduce the number of office referrals from the cafeteria by 20% 


LMS Goal  #3: Students and adults will engage in a school climate that is characterized by responsibility for academic and social choices, an expectation of excellence 
and safety for themselves and others, and respect for one another and the overall academic environment. 


Rationale: Students will be provided direct and clear instruction on the updated school wide behavioral expectations, which were developed by the PBIS committee 
during the previous school year.  Through the use of specific systems and meaningful data analysis, the staff at LMS will work collaboratively to make informed decisions 
that will support them in fostering a safe and positive learning environment.  Current Office Disciplinary Referral (ODR) and Suspension data indicates that there is a 
need for these types of systems to improve student engagement and achievement. 


Faculty Learning Targets Structures and Leadership Actions Support 
Data Points/Evidence for Monitoring 


Progress 


1. I can promote and foster a school 
climate characterized by the school 
wide behavioral expectations HOW 
and RRSK. 


2. I can hold myself and my colleagues 
responsible for maintaining our 
agreed upon Staff Norms.  


3. I can consistently revisit character 
traits that students are expected to 
develop during class periods and 


• Support the development and 
implementation of Staff Norms.  
With input from all staff, establish 
and maintain a school wide 
discipline/behavior expectation 
plan. 


• Provide PD for staff on the new 
systems, with a focus on 
consistency across the building. 


• Provide staff with exemplar plans 


• Support the development and 
use of Staff Norms. 


• Support planning and provide 
feedback, specifically, related to 
character development. 


• Focused PD on promoting a 
positive school climate and 
character development. 


• Suggest and provide resources 


Faculty Evidence: 


• Documented discipline and 
behavioral expectations plan. 


• Classroom walkthrough 
rubrics. 


• Peer observation data. 


• Staff survey data. 







  


 29 


homeroom.  


4. I can articulate and hold students 
accountable for the school wide. 


5. I can articulate and hold students 
accountable for the school wide 
behavioral expectations and follow 
the school wide discipline plan (TBD). 


6. I can provide opportunities for 
stakeholders to engage in school wide 
transitions that promote positive 
character traits and development. 


7. I can plan opportunities for explicit 
teacher of character development, 
communication skills, conflict 
resolution, and problem solving skills 
to students. 


8. I can support the development and 
use of Town Hall meetings. 


9. I can begin to develop school-wide 
Community Meetings. 


 


to be used for explicitly teaching 
the expectations and systems. 


• Allocate money in the budget for 
resources to support the new 
systems (posters, events, etc.) 


• With input from staff, create 
classroom walk-through rubric, 
specifically focused on student 
behavior and character 
development portions of the APPR 
rubrics. 


• Communicate new systems and 
expectations to all necessary 
stakeholders, including students, 
families, teaching and support 
staff, and transportation staff. 


• Obtain feedback from 
stakeholders through the use of 
surveys. 


for teaching and reinforcing 
character development. 


• Classroom observations and 
feedback. 


• Parent/Community education. 
(Website/Newsletters/Open 
House/Parent Nights) 


• Professional Development 
logs. 


• Student evidence. 


• ODR and OSS data. 


• Community event 
attendance logs. 


• Student/family survey data. 


• Faculty Survey. 


 
 
 


 
District Goal #3: Parent & Community Partnerships 


At North Rose-Wolcott, we will foster partnerships for learning that build communication and understanding within the school district and community. 


This plan will address the following:  
 
-increased communication with parents regarding their student’s progress toward learning standards, behavior in school (positive included), understanding the 
Common Core Learning Standards, how to support their student with homework 
-increased communication and interaction with community members, area businesses to establish relevance and context for student learning and increase student 
college, career, and community awareness  
-increased sharing of student, staff, and district accomplishments and achievements with local area media and social media 
-use of shared decision-making teams and processes 
 
Our building’s current state in this area is as follows: (INSERT DATA/NARRATIVE HERE) 


 
Objective #1: 


Faculty Learning Targets Structures and Leadership Actions Support  Data Points/Evidence for Monitoring 
Progress  


 


 


 


   







  


 30 


 


 


 
 
District Goal #4: Organizational & Professional Growth 


Our goal is to have a highly qualified and collaborative staff that is committed to continuous improvement and collaboration. We accomplish this goal through 
effective and collaborative school leadership.  


This plan will address the following:  
 
-professional development cycle (plan, act, reflect, share) for all staff members  
-school organization 
 -vertical team, grade level, content area work 
 -program development (e.g. work-based learning, UPK) 
-APPR implementation  
 -staff supervision 
 -administrator supervision 
Our building’s current state in this area is as follows: (INSERT DATA/NARRATIVE HERE) 


 
District Goal #5: School Operations 


NRW will provide school and district staff with the resources required for highly effective job performance. These resources include: facilities, equipment, materials, 
and support services.  


This plan will address the following:  
 
-provision of a high-quality instructional program, while continuing to be fiscally responsible 
-clear administrative guidelines for district procedures and protocols 
-grade level configuration 
 
Our building’s current state in this area is as follows: (INSERT DATA/NARRATIVE HERE) 


 
Objective #1: 


Faculty Learning Targets Structures and Leadership Actions Support  Data Points/Evidence for Monitoring 
Progress  


 


 


 


 


 


   


 


 





		New York State Education Department

		Local Assistance Plan (LAP)

		Diagnostic Self-Review Document and Report Template

		UGuidance

		UCompleting This Form






  


POLICY 
2013 3410 


1 of 5 
 
Community Relations 


SUBJECT: CODE OF CONDUCT ON SCHOOL PROPERTY 
 
 The District has developed and will amend, as appropriate, a written Code of Conduct for the 
Maintenance of Order on School Property, including school functions, which shall govern the conduct 
of students, teachers and other school personnel, as well as visitors and/or vendors. The Board of 
Education shall further provide for the enforcement of such Code of Conduct. 
 
 For purposes of this policy, and the implemented Code of Conduct, school property means in or 
within any building, structure, athletic playing field, playground, parking lot or land contained within 
the real property boundary line of the District's elementary or secondary schools, or in or on a school 
bus; and a school function shall mean a school-sponsored extracurricular event or activity regardless 
of where such event or activity takes place, including those that take place in another state. 
 
 The District Code of Conduct has been developed in collaboration with student, teacher, 
administrator, and parent organizations, school safety personnel and other school personnel. 
 
 The Code of Conduct shall include, at a minimum, the following: 
 


a) Provisions regarding conduct, dress and language deemed appropriate and acceptable on 
school property and at school functions, and conduct, dress and language deemed 
unacceptable and inappropriate on school property; provisions regarding acceptable civil 
and respectful treatment of teachers, school administrators, other school personnel, students 
and visitors on school property and at school functions; the appropriate range of 
disciplinary measures which may be imposed for violation of such Code; and the roles of 
teachers, administrators, other school personnel, the Board of Education and 
parents/persons in parental relation to the student; 


 
b) Provisions prohibiting discrimination, bullying and/or harassment against any student, by 


employees or students on school property, at a school function, or off school property when 
the actions create or would foreseeably create a risk of substantial disruption within the 
school environment or where it is foreseeable that the conduct might reach school property, 
that creates a hostile environment by conduct, with or without physical contact, threats, 
intimidation or abuse (verbal or non-verbal), of such a severe nature that: 


 
1. Has or would have the effect of unreasonably and substantially interfering with a 


student's educational performance, opportunities or benefits, or mental, emotional 
and/or physical well-being; or 


 
2. Reasonably causes or would reasonably be expected to cause a student to fear for 


his/her physical safety. 
 
 
 
 
 
 


(Continued) 







  


POLICY 
2013 3410 


2 of 5 
 
Community Relations 


SUBJECT: CODE OF CONDUCT ON SCHOOL PROPERTY  (Cont'd.) 
 


When the term "bullying" is used, even if not explicitly stated, such term includes 
cyberbullying, meaning such harassment or bullying that occurs through any form of 
electronic communication. 
 
Such conduct shall include, but is not limited to, threats, intimidation, or abuse based on a 
person's actual or perceived race, color, weight, national origin, ethnic group, religion, 
religious practices, disability, sexual orientation, gender as defined in Education Law 
Section 11(6), or sex; provided that nothing in this subdivision shall be construed to 
prohibit a denial of admission into, or exclusion from, a course of instruction based on a 
person's gender that would be permissible under Education Law Sections 3201-a or 
2854(2) (a) and Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 USC Section 1681, et 
seq.), or to prohibit, as discrimination based on disability, actions that would be permissible 
under 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973; 


 
c) Standards and procedures to assure security and safety of students and school personnel; 


 
d) Provisions for the removal from the classroom and from school property, including a 


school function, of students and other persons who violate the Code; 
 


e) Provisions prescribing the period for which a disruptive student may be removed from the 
classroom for each incident, provided that no such student shall return to the classroom 
until the Principal (or his/her designated School District administrator) makes a final 
determination pursuant to Education Law Section 3214(3-a)I or the period of removal 
expires, whichever is less; 


 
f) Disciplinary measures to be taken for incidents on school property or at school functions 


involving the use of tobacco, the possession or use of illegal substances or weapons, the 
use of physical force, vandalism, violation of another student's civil rights, harassment and 
threats of violence; 


 
g) Provisions for responding to acts of discrimination, bullying and/or harassment against 


students by employees or students on school property, or at a school function, or off school 
property when the actions create or would foreseeable create a risk of substantial disruption 
within the school environment or where it is foreseeable that the conduct might reach 
school property, pursuant to clause (b) of this subparagraph; 


 
h) Provisions for detention, suspension and removal from the classroom of students, 


consistent with Education Law Section 3214 and other applicable federal, state and local 
laws, including provisions for school authorities to establish procedures to ensure the 
provision of continued educational programming and activities for students removed from 
the classroom, placed in detention, or suspended from school, which shall include 
alternative educational programs appropriate to individual student needs; 


 
 


(Continued) 







  


POLICY 
2013 3410 


3 of 5 
 
Community Relations 


SUBJECT: CODE OF CONDUCT ON SCHOOL PROPERTY  (Cont'd.) 
 


i) Procedures by which violations are reported and determined, and the disciplinary measures 
imposed and carried out; 


 
j) Provisions ensuring the Code of Conduct and its enforcement are in compliance with state 


and federal laws relating to students with disabilities; 
 


k) Provisions setting forth the procedures by which local law enforcement agencies shall be 
notified of Code violations which constitute a crime; 


 
l) Provisions setting forth the circumstances under and procedures by which parents/persons 


in parental relation to the student shall be notified of Code violations; 
 


m) Provisions setting forth the circumstances under and procedures by which a complaint in 
criminal court, a juvenile delinquency petition or person in need of supervision ("PINS") 
petition as defined in Articles 3 and 7 of the Family Court Act will be filed; 


 
n) Circumstances under and procedures by which referral to appropriate human service 


agencies shall be made; 
 


o) A minimum suspension period for students who repeatedly are substantially disruptive of 
the educational process or substantially interfere with the teacher's authority over the 
classroom, provided that the suspending authority may reduce such period on a case-by-
case basis to be consistent with any other state and federal law. For purposes of this 
requirement, as defined in Commissioner's Regulations, "repeatedly is substantially 
disruptive of the educational process or substantially interferes with the teacher's authority 
over the classroom" shall mean engaging in conduct which results in the removal of the 
student from the classroom by teacher(s) pursuant to the provisions of Education Law 
Section 3214(3-a) and the provisions set forth in the Code of Conduct on four (4) or more 
occasions during a semester, or three (3) or more occasions during a trimester, as 
applicable; 


 
p) A minimum suspension period for acts that would qualify the student to be defined as a 


violent student pursuant to Education Law Section 3214(2-a)(a). However, the suspending 
authority may reduce the suspension period on a case-by-case basis consistent with any 
other state and federal law; 


 
q) A Bill of Rights and Responsibilities of Students which focuses upon positive student 


behavior and a safe and supportive school climate, which shall be written in plain-
language, publicized and explained in an age-appropriate manner to all students on an 
annual basis; and 


 
 
 
 


(Continued) 







  


POLICY 
2013 3410 


4 of 5 
 
Community Relations 


SUBJECT: CODE OF CONDUCT ON SCHOOL PROPERTY  (Cont'd.) 
 


r) Guidelines and programs for in-service education programs for all District staff members to 
ensure effective implementation of school policy on school conduct and discipline, 
including but not limited to, guidelines on promoting a safe and supportive school climate 
while discouraging, among other things, discrimination, bullying and/or harassment against 
students by students and/or school employees; and including safe and supportive school 
climate concepts in the curriculum and classroom management. 


 
 The District's Code of Conduct shall be adopted by the Board of Education only after at least one 
(1) public hearing that provided for the participation of school personnel, parents/persons in parental 
relation, students, and any other interested parties.  
 
 The Code of Conduct shall be reviewed on an annual basis, and updated as necessary in 
accordance with law. The District may establish a committee pursuant to Education Law Section 
2801(5)(a) to facilitate review of its Code of Conduct and the District's response to Code of Conduct 
violations. The School Board shall reapprove any updated Code of Conduct or adopt revisions only 
after at least one (1) public hearing that provides for the participation of school personnel, 
parents/persons in parental relation, students, and any other interested parties. The District shall file a 
copy of its Code of Conduct and any amendments with the commissioner, in a manner prescribed by 
the Commissioner, no later than thirty (30) days after their respective adoptions. 
 
 The Board of Education shall ensure community awareness of its Code of Conduct by: 
 


a) Posting the complete Code of Conduct on the Internet website, if any, including any annual 
updates and other amendments to the Code; 


 
b) Providing copies of a summary of the Code of Conduct to all students in an age-appropriate 


version, written in plain language, at a school assembly to be held at the beginning of each 
school year; 


 
c) Providing a plain language summary of the Code of Conduct to all parents or persons in 


parental relation to students before the beginning of each school year and making the 
summary available thereafter upon request; 


 
d) Providing each existing teacher with a copy of the complete Code of Conduct and a copy of 


any amendments to the Code as soon as practicable following initial adoption or 
amendment of the Code. New teachers shall be provided a complete copy of the current 
Code upon their employment; and 


 
e) Making complete copies available for review by students, parents or persons in parental 


relation to students, other school staff and other community members. 
 
 
 
 


(Continued) 







  


POLICY 
2013 3410 


5 of 5 
 
Community Relations 


SUBJECT: CODE OF CONDUCT ON SCHOOL PROPERTY  (Cont'd.) 
 
Privacy Rights 
 
 As part of any investigation, the District has the right to search all school property and 
equipment including District computers. Rooms, desks, cabinets, lockers, computers, etc. are provided 
by the District for the use of staff and students, but the users do not have exclusive use of these 
locations or equipment and should not expect that materials stored therein will be private. 
 
 
 
Education Law Sections 11(8), 801-a, 2801 and 3214 
Family Court Act Articles 3 and 7 
Vehicle and Traffic Law Section 142 
8 NYCRR Section 100.2 
 
 
 
 
 
NOTE: Refer also to District Code of Conduct  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adoption Date February 25, 2014 








 *REQUIRED POLICY 


POLICY 
2013 7222 


1 of 4 
 
Students 


SUBJECT: DIPLOMA AND/OR CREDENTIAL OPTIONS FOR STUDENTS WITH  
DISABILITIES 


 
 The District is committed to ensuring that students with disabilities are provided appropriate 
opportunities to earn a Regents or Local Diploma or other exiting Commencement Credential in 
accordance with the Commissioner's Regulations. To this end, graduation and transition plans shall 
take into account the various pathways available to these students.  
 
 In addition to all graduation options afforded to general education students, including the 
Regents Diploma and various honors and/or designations, the following diplomas and/or credentials 
are also available for students with disabilities. 
 
Local Diploma 
 
 To earn a Local Diploma, students with disabilities must: 
 


a) Complete the same twenty-two (22) units of credit required for a Regents Diploma; and 
 
b) Achieve a score of 55 or higher on one or more of the five (5) examinations required for a 


Regents Diploma. 
 


Note: Students with disabilities entering Grade 9 prior to September 2011: A passing grade 
on a Regents Competency Test (RCT) may be used in lieu of a passing grade on a Regents 
examination. The school may administer the RCT before or after the corresponding 
Regents exam, however the student must take the required Regents exam. The RCT option 
remains available until the applicable student graduates or turns twenty-one (21) years old. 


 
Local Diploma Compensatory Option (Safety Net) 
 
 To earn a Local Diploma using the compensatory option, students with disabilities must: 
 


a) Complete the same twenty-two (22) units of credit required for a Regents Diploma; 
 
b) Achieve a score of at least 55 on both the English (ELA) and Math Regents exams; 
 
c) Achieve a score between 45-54 on one or more of the other required Regents exams (US 


History and Government, Global History, and a Science), in which case each score of 65 or 
higher on any other Regents exam may compensate for a single 45-54 required exam; 


 
d) Obtain a passing grade for the course in the subject area of the Regents exam in which he 


or she received a score of 45-54; 
 
e) Have a satisfactory attendance rate in accordance with the District's or school's attendance 


policy for the school year; and 
 
 


(Continued) 







 *REQUIRED POLICY 


POLICY 
2013 7222 


2 of 4 
 
Students 


SUBJECT: DIPLOMA AND/OR CREDENTIAL OPTIONS FOR STUDENTS WITH  
DISABILITIES  (Cont'd.) 


 
f) Not already be using a passing score on any RCTs, if such exam is available to the student 


(entered Grade 9 prior to September 2011). 
 
Career Development and Occupational Studies (CDOS) Commencement Credential 
 
 The Career Development and Occupational Studies (CDOS) Commencement Credential may be 
earned by a student with a disability to document his or her preparation for entry-level employment 
after high school. This credential can be awarded in conjunction with a Regents or Local Diploma, or 
may be issued by itself.  
 
 When awarding the CDOS Commencement Credential using option one, the student shall 
demonstrate evidence of the following requirements, which shall be verified by the District: 
 


a) The student has a developed, annually reviewed and, as appropriate, revised Career Plan to 
assure the student is actively engaged in career exploration; 


 
b) The student has demonstrated commencement level knowledge and skills of the CDOS 


learning standards. To evidence this level of knowledge and skill, a student must 
demonstrate: career development, integrated learning, and universal foundation skills. In 
addition a student may also, but is not required to, demonstrate additional career skills by 
completing a career-specific major; 


 
c) The student has successfully completed at least two (2) units of study (216 hours) in Career 


and Technical Education (CTE) courses, including a minimum of 54 hours of documented 
school supervised work-based learning experiences, which may, but is not required to, be 
completed in conjunction with the CTE courses; and 


 
d) Within one year prior to a student's exit from school, at least one Employability Profile 


must be completed by designated school staff or other individuals knowledgeable about the 
student's employment skills and experiences. 


 
A student's CTE courses and supervised work-based learning experiences must be documented 


on his or her transcript and the Career Plan and Employability Profile must be placed in a student's 
permanent record. The State Education Department (SED) has provided models of the Career Plan and 
Employability Profile forms as well as charts of work-based learning programs and nationally-
recognized work-readiness credentials, located at:  
 http://www.p12.nysed.gov/specialed/publications/CDOScredential-memo-613.htm 
 
 
 
 
 
 


(Continued) 



http://www.p12.nysed.gov/specialed/publications/CDOScredential-memo-613.htm





 *REQUIRED POLICY 


POLICY 
2013 7222 


3 of 4 
 
Students 


SUBJECT: DIPLOMA AND/OR CREDENTIAL OPTIONS FOR STUDENTS WITH  
DISABILITIES  (Cont'd.) 


 
 Instead of the above (a-d) requirements, a District may utilize option two by awarding a CDOS 
Commencement Credential to a student who has completed a nationally-recognized work-readiness 
program or certification. Districts cannot exclusively offer option two and must still provide 
opportunities for students to fulfill the CDOS Commencement Credential through option one's 
requirements. 
 
Skills and Achievement (SA) Commencement Credential 
 
 To issue the Skills and Achievement (SA) Commencement Credential the District must ensure 
that the student: 
 


a) Meets the definition of a student with a severe disability; 
 
b) Has been recommended by the Committee of Special Education (CSE) to take the New 


York State Alternative Assessment (NYSAA) for students with severe disabilities; 
 
c) Has been given appropriate opportunities to participate in community experiences and 


development of employment and other instructional activities to prepare the student for 
post-secondary living, learning and employment; and 


 
d) Has been issued a summary of the student's academic achievement and functional 


performance. A model summary form developed by SED is located at:  
 http://www.p12.nysed.gov/specialed/publications/SACC-SESform-att2.htm 


 
Awarding the SA or CDOS Commencement Credentials 
 
 The SA and CDOS Commencement Credentials may be issued at any time after such student has 
attended school for at least twelve (12) years, or at the end of the school year in which the student 
turns twenty one (21) years old. When a student is under twenty-one (21) and is issued SA 
Commencement Credential or the CDOS Commencement Credential without the Regents or Local 
Diploma, the credential award must be accompanied by a written statement of assurance. This 
statement must indicate that the student remains eligible to attend the public school within the District, 
without payment of tuition, until the student has either earned a diploma or until he/she turns twenty-
one (21), whichever occurs first. 
 
 The CDOS and SA Commencement Credentials must be similar in form to the diplomas issued 
by the District, except that they shall not use the term "diploma" on them. The SA Commencement 
Credential must contain a clear annotation that it is based on alternate academic achievement 
standards. The CDOS Commencement Credential shall indicate that it has been endorsed by the New 
York State Board of Regents as a certificate of readiness for entry-level employment.  
 
 
 


(Continued) 



http://www.p12.nysed.gov/specialed/publications/SACC-SESform-att2.htm





 *REQUIRED POLICY 


POLICY 
2013 7222 


4 of 4 
 
Students 


SUBJECT: DIPLOMA AND/OR CREDENTIAL OPTIONS FOR STUDENTS WITH  
DISABILITIES  (Cont'd.) 


 
Education Law Sections 3202 and 4402 
8 NYCRR Sections 100.1, 100.2, 100.5, 100.6, 200.4 and 200.5  
 
 
 
 
 
NOTE: Refer also to Policy #7220 -- Graduation Requirements/Early Graduation/Accelerated  


Programs 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adoption Date: November 18, 2014 








  


POLICY 
2014 7360 


 
 
Students 


SUBJECT: WEAPONS IN SCHOOL AND THE GUN-FREE SCHOOLS ACT  
 


With the exception of those students who receive prior written permission from the Board of 
Education or its designee, no student may bring in or possess any "firearm" or "weapon" on school 
property, on a school bus or District vehicle, in school buildings, or at school sponsored activities or 
settings under the control or supervision of the District regardless of location. Any student who has 
been found guilty of bringing in or possessing a firearm or weapon in violation of this policy will be 
disciplined in a manner consistent with State and Federal law and the District's Code of Conduct. Such 
discipline may include a mandatory suspension for a period of not less than one (1) calendar year for a 
student who is determined to have violated the Federal Gun-Free Schools Act and its implementing 
provisions in the New York State Education Law, provided that the Superintendent may modify the 
suspension requirement on a case-by-case basis. 
 
 Students who have brought a "weapon" or "firearm" to school will be referred by the 
Superintendent to either a presentment agency (the agency or authority responsible for presenting a 
juvenile delinquency proceeding) or to appropriate law enforcement officials. Such referrals will be 
made as follows:  a student who is under the age of sixteen (16) and who is not a fourteen (14) or 
fifteen (15) year-old who qualifies for juvenile offender status under the Criminal Procedure Law will 
be referred to a presentment agency for juvenile delinquency proceedings; a student who is sixteen 
(16) years old or older, or who is fourteen (14) or fifteen (15) and qualifies for juvenile offender status, 
will be referred to the appropriate law enforcement authorities. 
 
 For the purposes of this policy, the term "weapon" will be as defined in 18 USC 930(g)(2). 
 
 For the purposes of this policy, the term "firearm" will be as defined in 18 USC 921(a). 
 


Students with disabilities continue to be entitled to all rights enumerated in the Individuals with 
Disabilities Act and Education Law Article 89. This policy shall not be deemed to authorize 
suspension of students with disabilities in violation of those authorities. 
 


This policy does not diminish the authority of the Board of Education to offer courses in 
instruction in the safe use of firearms pursuant to Education Law Section 809-a. 
 
 
Gun-Free Schools Act as reauthorized by the No Child Left Behind Act of 2001 
  18 USC Sections 921(a) and 930 
Criminal Procedure Law Section 1.20(42) 
Education Law Sections 809-a and 3214  
 
 
 
NOTE: Refer also to Policies #3411 -- Unlawful Possession of a Weapon Upon School Grounds 


#7313 -- Suspension of Students 
District Code of Conduct 


 
Adoption Date: November 18, 2014 
 








1 
 


NORTH ROSE-WOLCOTT CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION REGULAR MEETING 


NOVEMBER 18, 2014  7:00 PM ROOM 210 OF THE HIGH SCHOOL 
 


AGENDA 
 


Meet the Superintendent: High School Foyer from 6:00 PM to 7:00 PM 
Stephan Vigliotti will be on hand to meet members of the community. 
 
1.  Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance 


a. Approval of Agenda 
RESOLUTION 


 Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools 
and pursuant to Education Law, approves the agenda of November 18, 2014. 


 
b. Board of Education Recognition 


 
2.  Public Access to the Board: 


This time is provided for residents of the District to address the Board of Education. 
 
3.  Approve Appointment of the Superintendent of Schools  


WHEREAS, the Board of Education, after careful consideration, has determined that Stephan J. 
Vigliotti, Sr.  possesses the experience and necessary qualifications to serve as the North Rose-Wolcott 
Central School District's Superintendent of Schools and to continue the orderly administration of the 
District's ongoing programs and projects; and 


 
WHEREAS, Mr. Vigliotti has agreed to accept the Board's offer of appointment to serve as the 


Superintendent of Schools effective on or about January 19th, 2015.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Education hereby appoints  
Stephan J. Vigliotti, Sr. as the Superintendent of Schools of the North Rose-Wolcott Central School 


District for an initial term of three (3) years six (6) months, commencing on or about January 19, 2015 
through June 30, 2018 at an initial annual base salary of One Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars 
($150,000.00); and  


 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Education hereby ratifies and adopts a written 


Employment Agreement containing all of the relevant and applicable benefits, terms and conditions of 
employment for the Superintendent; and 


 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Education hereby authorizes the President of the 


Board, or the Vice President in his absence, to execute said Agreement on behalf of the District and to 
file same with the District Clerk. 
 


4.  Presentations: 
a. Alternative Learning Center Overview 


Cary Merritt, Brian Cole and Kathy Hoyt will give a brief overview of program and student progress. 
 
5.  Reports and Correspondence: 


a. Principal & Director Reports: 
b. Student Update: Jessica Wright 
c. Four County SBA Meetings: E. Magin 
d. Good News: 
e. Other 







2 
 


6.  Administrative Reports: 
a. Director of Curriculum & Instruction Update:  
b. Business Administrator’s Update: 
c. Superintendent’s Update:  


 
7.  Consent Agenda: 


a. Board of Education Meeting Minutes  
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools 
and pursuant to Education Law, approves the Meeting Minutes of October 7, 2014. 
 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools 
and pursuant to Education Law, approves the Meeting Minutes of October 8, 2014. 
 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools 
and pursuant to Education Law, approves the Meeting Minutes of October 9, 2014. 
 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools 
and pursuant to Education Law, approves the Meeting Minutes of October 14, 2014. 
 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools 
and pursuant to Education Law, approves the Meeting Minutes of October 15, 2014. 
 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools 
and pursuant to Education Law, approves the Meeting Minutes of October 21, 22, 23, 2014. 
 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools 
and pursuant to Education Law, approves the Meeting Minutes of October 29, 2014. 
 


b. Recommendations from CSE and CPSE 
 RESOLUTION 


Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools 
and pursuant to Education Law, approves the recommendations for the Committee on Special 
Education dated September 18, 2014, and October 1, 2, 6, 8, 9, 14,15, 18, 21, 22, 23, 28, 29 and 30 
2014, and November 4 and 5 2014. and instructs the Superintendent to implement the 
recommendations on behalf of the following individuals identified by student number:    
12561  13230  12734  13305  13304  13344  13429  13412  12555  13442  12109  12440  12963  12281 
12849  11781  13424  13210  12479  12168  13056  12168  12272  13402  12323  13124  11231  11212 
11209  12182  11772  13374  13206  13387  13430  13068  11860  11752  11484  11483  13414  11405 
13207  11234  13446  11318  10198  10495  09385  10534  10180  10917  11465  IEP Amendments: 
13447  12699  12402  11818  11597  11129  
 


c. Substitute Teachers and Substitute Service Personnel  
 RESOLUTION 


Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools 
and pursuant to Education Law, approves the individuals named on the substitute lists, which are 
on file with the District Clerk. 
 


  







3 
 


d. Treasurer Reports 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools 
and pursuant to Education Law approves the Treasurer Reports as of September 30, 2014. 
 


e. Return of Taxes to the County 
 Robert Magin is recommending that unpaid school taxes be returned to the County for collection of 


payment.   
 
 RESOLUTION 
 Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools 


and pursuant to Education Law, approves the return of 2014 unpaid school taxes to Wayne County 
for collection of payment. 
 


f. Approval of Professional Development Plan 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools 
and pursuant to Education Law approves the 2014-2015 Professional Development Plan.  
 


g. Approval of Local Assistance Plan 
RESOLUTION 


 Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools 
and pursuant to Education Law approves the 2014-2015 Local Assistance Plan. 


 
h. Policy Approval 


A number of policies were reviewed by the Policy Committee and recommended changes were 
discussed by the entire Board at a number of meetings prior to the end of the 2013-14 school year. 
These policies need formal approval. 
 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools 
and pursuant to Education Law approves the revisions and updates to the following policies: 
3411 - Prohibition of Weapons on School Grounds 
7222 – Diploma and/or Credential Options for Students w/ Disabilities 
7360 - Weapons in School and the Gun-Free Schools Act 
7550 – Dignity for all students Act 
 


i. Donation to the District  
Whereas, Target has made a donation of $135.91 to the North Rose - Wolcott Central School 
District, and;  
 Whereas, Target has designated that the funds be used solely for the purpose of purchasing 
books, field trips, art supplies or new technology for the High School; now, 
 Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools and pursuant to Education Law, accepts the donation in the amount of $135.91 and amends 
the 2014-2015 budget by an increase of $135.91 to High School supply code 2110-450-04-0000. 
 


j. Donation to the District 
Harbec Inc. of Ontario, NY has donated machines to be used in the High School metals program.  
These items include a CNC (Computer Numeric Control) end mill and a Dell interface computer.  
The donation of this type provides students with an introduction to a career in machining and 
tooling. Additionally, they will provide for the rigging and shipping of the mill to the district.  
 







4 
 


RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools 
and pursuant to Education Law accepts the donation of one CNC (Computer Numeric Control) End 
Mill, a Dell interface computer and the rigging and shipping of the equipment from Harbec Inc., 369 
Route 104, Ontario, New York 14519 in the amount of $17,500.00. 
 


k. Disposal of District Property 
Kaaren Thompson, Director of Technology is recommending that a number of district owned 
printers, scanners and computers be recycled or discarded. 
 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools 
and pursuant to Education Law, authorizes the Director of Technology to recycle and/or dispose of 
computer hardware. The list is on file with the District Clerk. 
 


l. Personnel Items: 
1. Resignation – Alexis Bentley 


Ms. Bentley, a Teacher Aide at North Rose - Wolcott Elementary, submitted a letter of 
resignation. 


 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools and pursuant to Education Law accepts the resignation of Alexis Bentley as a Teacher 
Aide effective October 24, 2014. 


 
2. Resignation – Jessica Ehrne 


Ms. Ehrne, a Food Service Helper at the Middle School, submitted a letter of resignation in order 
to accept another position in the District. 
  
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools and pursuant to Education Law accepts the resignation of Jessica Ehrne as a Food 
Service Helper effective November 16, 2014. 


 
3. Permanent Appointment – Thomas Clement 


Robert Galloway is pleased to recommend Mr. Clement to a permanent appointment as a 
Cleaner. 


 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools and pursuant to Education Law approves the permanent appointment of Thomas 
Clement as a Cleaner effective December 15, 3014. 


 
4. Appoint UPK Coordinator – Pamela Brooks 


A stipulation of the UPK Grant requires that the district appoint a coordinator each year.   
 


RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools and pursuant to Education Law approves the appointment of Pamela Brooks as the UPK 
Coordinator at a salary of $8,000 for the 2014-15 school year. 


 
5. Appoint School Nurse – Ashley Krul 


Jennifer Hayden is pleased to recommend Ashley Krul to fill a School Nurse position left vacant 
by the resignation of Kelly Smart. 
 







5 
 


RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools and pursuant to Education Law, approves the 26 week probationary appointment of 
Ashley Krul, conditional upon a criminal history record check according to Commissioners 
Regulation §80 1.11 and Part 87 as follows: 
License:  Registered Nurse 
Probationary Period: November 3, 2014 – May 2, 2015 
Salary: $30,700 plus $2,000 Bachelor’s differential prorated to start date 
 


6. Appoint School Nurse – Stacy Pisanelli 
Mark Mathews is pleased to recommend Stacy Pisanelli to fill a School Nurse position left vacant 
by the resignation of Lisa Humbert. 
 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools and pursuant to Education Law, approves the 26 week probationary appointment of 
Lisa Pisanelli, conditional upon a criminal history record check according to Commissioners 
Regulation §80 1.11 and Part 87 as follows: 
License:  Registered Nurse 
Probationary Period: December 1, 2014 – May 31, 2015 
Salary: $33,933 prorated to start date 
 


7. Appoint Long-Term Substitute Music Teacher – Rebecca Harris 
Paul Benz is pleased to recommend Rebecca Harris as a long-term substitute in the vocal music 
program in the High School.  Ms. Harris will sub for Christine Schwind while she is on maternity 
and child rearing leave. 
 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools and pursuant to Education Law, approves the  appointment of Rebeca Harris as a Long-
Term Substitute teacher, conditional upon a criminal history record check according to 
Commissioners Regulation §80 1.11 and Part 87 as follows: 
Certification:  Permanent Music 
Appointment Date: November 12, 2014 – June 30, 2015 
Salary: Step A $40,000 prorated to start date 
 


8. Appoint Teacher Aide – Karen Meyer 
Paul Benz is pleased to recommend Karen Meyer as a Teacher Aide in the High School.  This 
newly created position was created to serve a special needs student. 
 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools and pursuant to Education Law, approves the twenty-six week probationary 
appointment of Karen Meyer as a Teacher Aide, conditional upon a criminal history record 
check according to Commissioners Regulation §80 1.11 and Part 87 for 5 hrs./day, 10 mo./yrs. 
at $9.75/hr. for a total estimated annual salary of $9,311 prorated to a start date of November 
24, 2014. 
 


9. Appoint Teacher Aide – Jessica Ehrne 
Kathy Goolden is pleased to recommend Jessica Ehrne as a Teacher Aide to fill the position left 
vacant by the resignation of Alexis Bentley. 
 







6 
 


RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools and pursuant to Education Law approves the 26 week probationary appointment of 
Jessica Ehrne as a Teacher Aide, conditional upon a criminal history record check according to 
Commissioners Regulation §80 1.11 and Part 87 for 7 hrs./day, 10 mo./yr. at $9.94/hr. for a 
total estimated annual salary of $13,290 prorated to start date of November 17, 2014. 
 


10. After School Discovery Program (formerly After the Bell) 
Additional school personnel have voiced their interest in working with students in the After 
School Discovery Program held each day in the Middle School. This program is funded through 
the 21st Century Grant. 
 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools and pursuant to Education Law approves the following individuals to work in the After 
School Discovery Program for the 2014-15 school year and to be paid through the 21st Century 
Community Learning Centers Grant. 
Name   Position  $/Hr. 
Susan Pierce  Teacher Aide  $10.00/hr. 
Megan Lown  Teacher  $25.00/hr. 
Erin Pitcher  Teacher  $25.00/hr. 
Diana Schultz  Teacher  $25.00/hr. 
Maja Swasty  Teacher  $25.00/hr. 
Patricia Weber  Teacher  $25.00/hr. 
John O’Brien  Teacher  $25.00/hr. 
 


11. Appoint Lifeguard 
Amy Bromley is pleased to recommend a student as lifeguard. 
  
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools and pursuant to Education Law approves Karli Starczewski as a Lifeguards effective 
November 19, 2014 at $8.75/hr. 
 


12. Curriculum & Staff Development Council 
Melanie Stevenson is pleased to recommend an individual to serve as Lead Teacher on the 
Curriculum & Staff Development Council. 
 


RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools and pursuant to Education Law, approves the following teacher to serve on Curriculum 
& Staff Development Council for the 2014-15 school year at a stipend of $1500: 
 
 
 


13. Leave of Absence – Brian Cole 
Mrs. Cole is requesting a leave of absence from his Teaching Assistant position in order to fill in 
as a teacher for Cary Merritt, who will be on sick leave. 
 


RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools and pursuant to Education Law approves the leave of absence of Brian Cole as a 
Teaching Assistant, with no loss of seniority, from November 24, 2014 to approximately 
January 18, 2015. 
 


Lead Teachers: Area: 
Allison Thompson Universal PreK 







7 
 


14. Appoint Long Term Substitute Teacher –Brian Cole 
Paul Benz is pleased to recommend Brian Cole as a long term substitute teacher in the 
Alternative Learning Center while Cary Merritt is on sick leave. 
 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools and pursuant to Education Law, approves the appointment of Brian Cole as a long term 
substitute teacher, conditional upon a criminal history record check according to 
Commissioners Regulation §80 1.11 and Part 87 as follows: 
Certification:  Childhood Ed Gr. 1-6 
Appointment Period: November 24, 2014 – approximately January 18, 2015 to serve at the 
pleasure of the Board 
Salary: $200.00/day 
 
 


8.  Information Items:  
1. Claims Auditor Reports 
2. Smart Schools Bond Act Information  
3. Spanish Class Newsletter 


 
9.  Public Participation: 
 This time is provided for the public to ask questions of Board discussions during the meeting.  








  


POLICY 
2013 7550 


1 of 4 
 
Students 


SUBJECT: DIGNITY FOR ALL STUDENTS ACT 
 
 The Board of Education recognizes that learning environments that are safe and supportive can 
increase student attendance and improve academic achievement. A student's ability to learn and 
achieve high academic standards, and a school's ability to educate students, is compromised by 
incidents of discrimination or harassment, including but not limited to bullying, taunting and 
intimidation. Therefore, in accordance with the Dignity for All Students Act, Education Law, Article 
2, the District will strive to create an environment free of bullying, discrimination and/or harassment 
and will foster civility in the schools to prevent and prohibit conduct which is inconsistent with the 
District's educational mission. Since cyberbullying is a form of bullying, the term "bullying" as used in 
this policy will implicitly include cyberbullying even if it is not explicitly stated. 
 


The District condemns and prohibits all forms of bullying, discrimination and/or harassment of 
students based on actual or perceived race, color, weight, national origin, ethnic group, religion, 
religious practice, disability, sexual orientation, gender, or sex by school employees or students on 
school property and at school-sponsored activities and events that take place at locations off school 
property. In addition, any act of bullying, discrimination and/or harassment, outside of school 
sponsored events, which can reasonably be expected to materially and substantially disrupt the 
education process may be subject to discipline. 
 
Dignity Act Coordinator 
 


At least one (1) employee at every school shall be designated as the Dignity Act Coordinator(s). 
The Dignity Act Coordinator(s) will be thoroughly trained to handle human relations in the areas of 
race, color, weight, national origin, ethnic group, religion, religious practice, disability, sexual 
orientation, gender (identity or expression) and sex. The Board of Education shall appoint a Dignity 
Act Coordinator(s) who is employed by such District or BOCES and is licensed and/or certified as a 
classroom teacher, school counselor, psychologist, nurse, social worker, administrator/ supervisor or 
Superintendent of Schools. Districts must share the name(s) and contact information of the Dignity 
Act Coordinator(s) with all school personnel, students, and parents/persons in parental relation, which 
shall include, but is not limited to, providing the name, designated school and contact information by: 
 


a) Listing such information in the Code of Conduct and updates posted on the Internet 
website, if available; and 


 
b) Including such information in the plain language summary of the Code of Conduct 


provided to all persons in parental relation to students before the beginning of each school 
year; and 


 
c) Providing such information to parents and persons of parental relation in at least one (1) 


district or school mailing or other method of distribution including, but not limited to,  
 


 
 
 


(Continued) 
 







  


POLICY 
2013 7550 


2 of 4 
 
Students 


SUBJECT: DIGNITY FOR ALL STUDENTS ACT  (Cont'd.) 
 


through electronic communication and/or sending such information home with each student 
and, if such information changes, in at least one subsequent district or school mailing or 
other such method of distribution as soon as practicable thereafter; 


 
d) Posting such information in highly visible areas of school buildings; 


 
e) Making such information available at the district and school-level administrative offices. 


 
If a Dignity Act Coordinator vacates his/her position, another school employee shall immediately 


be designated for an interim appointment as Coordinator, pending approval from the Board of 
Education, within thirty (30) days of the date the position was vacated. In the event a Coordinator is 
unable to perform the duties of the position for an extended period of time, another school employee 
shall immediately be designated for an interim appointment as Coordinator, pending return of the 
previous Coordinator to the position. The District must provide the change in information to parents or 
persons in parental relation as soon as practicable. The change in name and/or contact information of 
the Dignity Act Coordinator will not constitute a revision to the Code of Conduct so as to require a 
public hearing. 
 
Training and Awareness 
 


Each District and Charter School shall establish guidelines for training which shall be approved 
by the Board of Education. Training will be provided each school year for all District employees in 
conjunction with existing professional development training to raise staff awareness and sensitivity of 
bullying, discrimination and/or harassment directed at students that are committed by students or 
school employees on school property, at a school function, or off school property when the actions 
create or would foreseeably create a risk of substantial disruption within the school environment or 
where it is foreseeable that the conduct might reach school property.  
 


Training will include ways to promote a supportive school environment that is free from 
bullying, discrimination and/or harassment. Training shall: 


 
a) Raise awareness and sensitivity; 
 
b) Address social patterns and the effects on students; 
 
c) Inform employees on the identification and mitigation of such acts; 
 
d) Provide strategies for effectively addressing problems of exclusion, bias and aggression; 
 
e) Include safe and supportive school climate concepts in curriculum and classroom 


management; and 
 
 
 


(Continued) 







  


POLICY 
2013 7550 


3 of 4 
 
Students 


SUBJECT: DIGNITY FOR ALL STUDENTS ACT  (Cont'd.) 
 


f) Ensure the effective implementation of school policy on conduct and discipline 
 
Instruction in grades Kindergarten through 12 shall include a component on civility, citizenship 


and character education. Such component shall instruct students on the principles of honesty, 
tolerance, personal responsibility, respect for others, observance of laws and rules, courtesy, dignity 
and other traits which will enhance the quality of their experiences in, and contributions to, the 
community. For the purposes of this policy, "tolerance," "respect for others" and "dignity" shall 
include awareness and sensitivity to bullying, discrimination and/or harassment and civility in the 
relations of people of different races, weights, national origins, ethnic groups, religions, religious 
practices, mental or physical abilities, sexual orientations, genders and sexes. Such component must 
also include instruction on the safe and responsible use of the Internet and electronic communications. 
 


Rules against bullying, discrimination and/or harassment will be included in the Code of 
Conduct, publicized District-wide and disseminated to all staff and parents. Any amendments to the 
Code will be disseminated as soon as practicable following their adoption. New teachers shall be 
provided a complete copy of the current Code upon their employment. An age-appropriate summary 
shall be distributed to all students at a school assembly at the beginning of each school year. 
 
Reports and Investigations of Bullying, Discrimination and/or Harassment 
 
 The District will investigate all complaints of bullying, discrimination and/or harassment, either 
formal or informal, and take prompt corrective measures, as necessary. School employees who witness 
or receive a report (oral or written) of harassment, bullying and/or discrimination must orally notify 
their immediate supervisor/ (whether it be Superintendent, Principal, Supervisor/Manager or their 
designee) no later than one (1) school day after witnessing or receiving a report of such incident. The 
employee must then file a written report within two (2) school days after making the oral report. If, 
after an appropriate investigation, the District finds that this policy has been violated, corrective action 
will be taken in accordance with District policies and regulations, the Code of Conduct, and all 
appropriate federal or state laws. The Dignity Act Coordinator (or Superintendent, Principal or their 
designee, in the absence of the Dignity Act Coordinator) shall notify the appropriate local law 
enforcement agency when it is believed that any harassment, bullying and/or discrimination constitute 
criminal conduct. 
 


The District will annually report material incidents of bullying, discrimination and/or harassment 
which occurred during the school year to the State Education Department. Such report shall be 
submitted in a manner prescribed by the Commissioner, on or before the basic educational data system 
(BEDS) reporting deadline or such other date as determined by the Commissioner. SED has developed 
a form for gathering data titled, "Reports of Incidents Concerning School Safety and the Educational 
Climate" which can be found on the NYSED website. 
 
 


(Continued) 
 
 
 







  


POLICY 
2013 7550 


4 of 4 
 
Students 


SUBJECT: DIGNITY FOR ALL STUDENTS ACT  (Cont'd.) 
 


The Principal of each primary and secondary school shall provide a regular report (at least once 
during each school year) on data and trends related to harassment, bullying and/or discrimination to 
the Superintendent and in a manner prescribed by, as applicable, the district, BOCES or charter 
school. There is no need for schools or districts to submit this report to the State Education 
Department. 
 
Prohibition of Retaliatory Behavior (Commonly Known as "Whistle-Blower" Protection) 
 
 Any person who has reasonable cause to suspect that a student has been subjected to bullying, 
discrimination and/or harassment by an employee or student, on school grounds or at a school 
function, who acts reasonably and in good faith and reports such information to school officials or law 
enforcement authorities, shall have immunity from any civil liability that may arise from making such 
report. The Board prohibits any retaliatory behavior directed at complainants, victims, witnesses 
and/or any other individuals who participated in the investigation of a complaint of bullying, 
discrimination and/or harassment.  
 
 
 
Education Law Sections 10-18, 801-a, 2801 and 3214 
8 NYCRR Section 100.2 
 
 
 
 
 
NOTE: Refer also to Policies #1330 -- Appointments and Designations by the Board of Education 


 #3410 -- Code of Conduct on School Property 
#3420 -- Non-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment in the School  


District 
#7551 -- Sexual Harassment of Students 
#7552 -- Bullying in the Schools 
#7553 -- Hazing of Students 
#8242 -- Civility, Citizenship and Character Education/Interpersonal  


Violence Prevention Education 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adoption Date: November 18, 2014 








UPK Coordinator Position Description: 


• Attend regional UPK meetings and share information with UPK staff and administrators 


• Visit classrooms for both out-of-district and in-district providers in order to mentor, coach, and 
support staff development initiatives 


• Act as a liaison for out-of-district providers 


• Support grant reporting and any other information that is required from the district by the state 


• Coordinate UPK information and registration meetings for families 


• Coordinate class lists and student placement in UPK 


• Arrange advertisement of UPK registration 


• Liaison between families and UPK programs 


• Serve on committees as appropriate 


• Provide UPK teachers with assistance in implementing curricular changes as they occur including 
creating and revising curriculum maps and assessments 


• Provide leadership and/or facilitation of curricular initiatives 


• Assist in analyzing and interpreting data to make informed curricular decisions 


• Assist with the development of the UPK budget 


• Serve in a train-the-trainer capacity with UPK members as requested 


• Meet with principals on a regular basis to share and gather information 


• Includes work during the summer as needed 








October 7, 2014                    34 
 


NORTH ROSE-WOLCOTT CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 


OCTOBER 7, 2014  6:00 PM      CONFERENCE ROOM 210 OF THE DISTRICT OFFICE 
 


PRESENT: Judi Buckalew, John Boogaard, Lucinda Collier, Edward Magin, Andrew 
Mathes, Danny Snyder, Izetta Younglove 


 
 Scott Bischoping, Superintendent, Wayne Finger-Lakes BOCES, Marla 


Iverson, Asst. Superintendent for School Improvement, Wayne Finger-
Lakes BOCES, Quinn  Morris, Director of Human Resources, Wayne 
Finger-Lakes BOCES  


 
CALL TO ORDER President, Edward Magin called the meeting to order at 6:03 PM and led 


the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 


1.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA Lucinda Collier moved and Judi Buckalew seconded the following 
motion.  It passed with a unanimous vote. J. Boogaard, J. Buckalew, L. 
Collier, E. Magin, A. Mathes, D. Snyder, I. Younglove voted yes. 


 
 Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the 


Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law, approves the 
agenda of October 7, 2014 


 
1b. EXECUTIVE SESSION Judi Buckalew moved and John Boogaard seconded the following 


motion.  It passed with a unanimous vote. J. Boogaard, J. Buckalew, L. 
Collier, E. Magin, A. Mathes, D. Snyder, I. Younglove voted yes. 


 
 Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the 


Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law approves 
Executive Session at 6:04 PM for the specific purpose of interviewing 
candidates for the position of Superintendent of Schools 


 
REGULAR SESSION The meeting returned to regular session at 9:20 PM. 
 
ADJOURNMENT Dan Snyder moved and Judi Buckalew seconded the following motion.  It 


passed with a unanimous vote. J. Boogaard, J. Buckalew, L. Collier, E. 
Magin, A. Mathes, D. Snyder, I. Younglove voted yes. 


 
 Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the 


Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law, approves the 
adjournment of the meeting at 9:25 PM. 


 
 
 
 
     ___________________________________________________ 
     Clerk of the Board of Education  
. 
 
 
 
 








October 8, 2014                    35 
 


NORTH ROSE-WOLCOTT CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 


OCTOBER 8, 2014  6:00 PM      CONFERENCE ROOM 210 OF THE DISTRICT OFFICE 
 


PRESENT: Judi Buckalew, John Boogaard, Lucinda Collier, Edward Magin, Andrew 
Mathes, Danny Snyder, Izetta Younglove 


 
 Scott Bischoping, Superintendent, Wayne Finger-Lakes BOCES, Marla 


Iverson, Asst. Superintendent for School Improvement, Wayne Finger-
Lakes BOCES, Quinn  Morris, Director of Human Resources, Wayne 
Finger-Lakes BOCES  


 
CALL TO ORDER President, Edward Magin called the meeting to order at 6:03 PM and led 


the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 


1.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA Andrew Mathes moved and Judi Buckalew seconded the following 
motion.  It passed with a unanimous vote. J. Boogaard, J. Buckalew, L. 
Collier, E. Magin, A. Mathes, D. Snyder, I. Younglove voted yes. 


 
 Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the 


Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law, approves the 
agenda of October 8, 2014 


 
1b. EXECUTIVE SESSION Lucinda Collier moved and Izetta Younglove seconded the following 


motion.  It passed with a unanimous vote. J. Boogaard, J. Buckalew, L. 
Collier, E. Magin, A. Mathes, D. Snyder, I. Younglove voted yes. 


 
 Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the 


Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law approves 
Executive Session at 6:04 PM for the specific purpose of interviewing 
candidates for the position of Superintendent of Schools 


 
REGULAR SESSION The meeting returned to regular session at 9:12 PM. 
 
ADJOURNMENT Dan Snyder moved and John Boogaard seconded the following motion.  It 


passed with a unanimous vote. J. Boogaard, J. Buckalew, L. Collier, E. 
Magin, A. Mathes, D. Snyder, I. Younglove voted yes. 


 
 Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the 


Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law, approves the 
adjournment of the meeting at 9:13 PM. 


 
 
 
 
     ___________________________________________________ 
     Clerk of the Board of Education  
. 
 
 
 
 








October 9, 2014                    36 
 


NORTH ROSE-WOLCOTT CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 


OCTOBER 9, 2014  6:00 PM      CONFERENCE ROOM 210 OF THE DISTRICT OFFICE 
 


PRESENT: Judi Buckalew, John Boogaard, Lucinda Collier, Edward Magin, Andrew 
Mathes, Danny Snyder, Izetta Younglove 


 
 Scott Bischoping, Superintendent, Wayne Finger-Lakes BOCES, Marla 


Iverson, Asst. Superintendent for School Improvement, Wayne Finger-
Lakes BOCES, Quinn  Morris, Director of Human Resources, Wayne 
Finger-Lakes BOCES  


 
CALL TO ORDER President, Edward Magin called the meeting to order at 6:04 PM and led 


the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 


1.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA Lucinda Collier moved and Izetta Younglove seconded the following 
motion.  It passed with a unanimous vote. J. Boogaard, J. Buckalew, L. 
Collier, E. Magin, A. Mathes, D. Snyder, I. Younglove voted yes. 


 
 Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the 


Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law, approves the 
agenda of October 9, 2014 


 
1b. EXECUTIVE SESSION Judi Buckalew and John Boogaard seconded the following motion.  It 


passed with a unanimous vote. J. Boogaard, J. Buckalew, L. Collier, E. 
Magin, A. Mathes, D. Snyder, I. Younglove voted yes. 


 
 Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the 


Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law approves 
Executive Session at 6:05 PM for the specific purpose of interviewing 
candidates for the position of Superintendent of Schools 


 
REGULAR SESSION The meeting returned to regular session at 9:30 PM. 
 
ADJOURNMENT Andrew Mathes and Izetta Younglove seconded the following motion.  It 


passed with a unanimous vote. J. Boogaard, J. Buckalew, L. Collier, E. 
Magin, A. Mathes, D. Snyder, I. Younglove voted yes. 


 
 Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the 


Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law, approves the 
adjournment of the meeting at 9:35 PM. 


 
 
 
 
     ___________________________________________________ 
     Clerk of the Board of Education  
. 
 
 
 
 








October 14, 2014                    37 
 


NORTH ROSE-WOLCOTT CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 


 OCTOBER 14, 2014 7:00 PM      ROOM 210 OF THE HIGH SCHOOL 
 


PRESENT: Judi Buckalew, John Boogaard,[7:11 PM] Lucinda Collier, Edward Magin, 
Andrew Mathes, Danny Snyder 


 
 Henry Hann, Elena LaPlaca, Robert Magin, Melanie Stevenson, and 


approximately 18 guests and staff members.   
   


ABSENT/EXCUSED Izetta Younglove, Jessica Wright 
 


CALL TO ORDER President, Edward Magin called the meeting to order at 7:04 PM and led 
the Pledge of Allegiance, 


 
1.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA Lucinda Collier moved and Andrew Mathes seconded the following 


motion.  It passed with a unanimous vote. J. Buckalew, L. Collier, E. 
Magin, A. Mathes, D. Snyder voted yes. 


 
 Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the 


Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law, approves the 
agenda of October 14, 2014. 


 
2 PUBLIC ACCESS No one spoke to the Board. 
 
3. PRESENTATIONS Kathy Hoyt, Director of Health, Physical Education and Athletics, 


provided the Board with an overview of the program and student 
development. Tim Burns and Kristi King spoke of the curriculum, 
expectations and progress of the PreK – grade 4 program; Kathy Hoyt 
spoke of program and expectations of grades 5 through 8.  George 
Wetherell spoke of the secondary level program and the emphasis put 
on maintaining life-long habits for personal health and fitness. 


 
 Kathy Hoyt told the Board that since 1975 the district has promoted 


heart health by requiring that all students complete and become 
certified in CPR. Since 2007, this requirement includes certification in 
the use of AED [automated external defibrillator] units.  North Rose - 
Wolcott is one of the few schools in the state to make this requirement of 
students.  All Board Members voiced their continued support to require 
this life-saving training as a graduation requirement. 


 
4a. PRINCIPAL  & DIRECTOR Mark Mathews, Middle School Principal announced a decline of 40%  in 


the number of students not meeting requirements at the 5 week marking 
period when compared to the same time last year and a 50% decline in 
discipline referrals. 


 
 Jennifer Hayden reported on a literacy intervention program to help 


students who have difficulty with reading.  SED will be visiting the 
district to evaluate the UPK program. 


 
 Paul Benz reported that a number of freshmen are being targeted for 


extra support in a number of area based on the 5 week marks. 







October 14, 2014                    38 
 


Homecoming events took place last week with Hank Hann taking first 
place in the popcorn event during the pep rally. 


 
 Kathy Goolden reported that weekly meetings are taking place to 


develop a Local Assistance Plan for Middle School special education 
students. 


 
 Kaaren Thompson reported on the importance of using the district 


webpage and Facebook page to communicate with parents and district 
residents. 


 
 Melissa Phelps reported on referrals and out of district placements. 
 
 Kathy Hoyt reported on the end of fall sports and the start of the winter 


season. 
 
4b. SUPERINTENDENT SEARCH Ed Magin announced that the Board has narrowed the candidate pool to 


three finalists: Stephan Vigliotti, Eugene Hoskins and Brian Pulvino.  
Stakeholder groups will be interviewing each candidate during day-long 
visits in the District. 


 
4c. STUDENT UPDATE No report was given. 
 
4d. GOOD NEWS John Boogaard commented on the Citizenship Award Ceremony recently 


held at North Rose - Wolcott Elementary School. 
 
4e. OTHER No reports were given. 
 
5a. DIRECTOR OF CURRICULUM Melanie Stevenson reported on recent curriculum meetings and work in  
AND INSTRUCTION Albany. The Professional Development Plan for the 2014-15 school year 


will be presented for approval at the next meeting. 
 
5b. BUSINESS ADMINISTRATOR Robert Magin discussed the Audit, Management Letter and Corrective 


Action Plan which are on the agenda for approval. 
 
5c. SUPERINTENENT’S UPDATE Hank Hann reported that the Board may receive a recommendation at 


the next meeting to promote the sharing of information throughout all 
avenues available to the district. 


 
 Mr. Hann mentioned the County Sales Tax issue and the possibility that it 


may be revisited again by the Board of Supervisors. 
 
6. CONSENT AGENDA Judi Buckalew moved and John Boogaard seconded the following 


motions.  They passed with a unanimous vote. J. Boogaard, J. Buckalew, 
L. Collier, E. Magin, A. Mathes, D. Snyder, I. Younglove voted yes.  


 
6a. MEETING MINUTES Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the 


Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law, approves the 
Meeting Minutes of September 16, 2014. 


 







October 14, 2014                    39 
 


 Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the 
Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law, approves the 
Meeting Minutes of September 17, 2014. 


 
6b. RECOMMENDATIONS Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the 


Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law, approves the 
recommendations for the Committee on Special Education dated 
September 15, 18, 23, and 24, 2014, and October 1, 2014 and instructs 
the Superintendent to implement the recommendations on behalf of the 
following individuals identified by student number: 12555  12155 11722 


 11325  11010  10623  11447  13069  09856  10899  12057  11158   11523 
 09661  13428  10338  13065   IEP Amendments: 13429  13412  12537  12955 
 12849  11597  13374   13206  13439  11483  11484  13066  13207  11405 
 12155  13438   13428 
  
6c. SUBSTITUTES Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the 


Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law, approves the 
individuals named on the substitute lists, which are on file with the 
District Clerk. 


 
6d. TREASURER’S REPORTS Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the 


Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law approves the 
Treasurer’s Reports for July 2014. 


 
 Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the 


Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law approves the 
Treasurer’s Reports for August 2014. 


 
6e. BOARD APPOINTMENT Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the 


Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law, appoints the 
following individuals to serve in the stated position with stipends as 
stated for the 2014-15 school year, effective October 15, 2014. 


 Medical Director: Dr. Krishna Persaud, Williamson Medical Center, 4418 
Ridge Rd., Williamson, NY 14589. 


 
6f. AUTHORIZATION TO REPAIR Resolution of the North Rose-Wolcott Central School District,  
SEPTIC SYSTEM AT NORTH   Wayne County, New York, adopted October 14, 2014, authorizing  
ROSE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL  repairs to the existing septic system at the North Nose – Wolcott 


Elementary School and declaring the costs of such repairs to be 
emergency ordinary contingent expenses.  


 
 WHEREAS, the District engaged SEI Design Group (“SEI”) to assist the 


District in connection with the District’s existing septic system at the 
North Rose – Wolcott Elementary School, including consultation and 
advice relative to compliance with the New York State Environmental 
Quality Review Act (“SEQRA”), ECL Section 8-0101, et seq., and 
implementing regulations, 6 NYCRR Part 617 (the “Regulations”); and 


 WHEREAS, the District has been advised by SEI that (a) sand bed 
filtration materials contained in the existing septic system at the 
District’s North Rose – Wolcott Elementary School building are 
contaminated with effluent, (b) distribution lines are impacted with 
effluent material, (c) sewage odor is in the facility, and (d) untreated 







October 14, 2014                    40 
 


liquid has appeared at the surface of the system’s distribution field, and 
therefore such existing septic system is in an advanced state of failure; 
and 


 WHEREAS, the District has been further advised by SEI that (a) this 
septic system failure cannot be remedied through strategic/localized 
repairs and requires the replacement of the system in its entirety to 
protect the health, welfare and safety of the students and staff assigned 
thereto and (b) action is immediately necessary for the protection of the 
health and safety of the students and staff of the District; and 


 WHEREAS, SEI has recommended that the District undertake the 
replacement of such septic system, including all general construction, 
plumbing, mechanical and electrical improvements, site improvements, 
acquisition and installation of furnishings, fixtures and equipment, 
architectural fees, and all other necessary costs incidental to such work 
(together, the “Project”); and 


 
 WHEREAS, the Project does not contemplate the expansion of such 


facilities, either individually or collectively, by 10,000 square feet of 
gross floor area or more; and 


 WHEREAS, SEI has reviewed the Project’s scope of work and has 
advised the District that the Project is properly classified as a Type II 
Action under the Regulations; and 


 WHEREAS, the District is a “local agency” pursuant to the Regulations; 
and  


  
 NOW, therefore Be it resolved, on October 14, 2014, by the Board of 


Education of the North Rose - Wolcott Central School District, as follows: 
      Section 1. The District, having reviewed the scope of the Project, 


hereby determines that such action constitutes a “Type II Action” under 
subsections (2), (8) and (33) of Section 617.5(c) of the Regulations and 
is not subject to review under SEQRA.   


      Section 2.  The District determines that replacement of the septic 
system at the District’s North Rose – Wolcott Elementary School 
building, including all general construction, plumbing, mechanical and 
electrical improvements, site improvements, acquisition and installation 
of furnishings, fixtures and equipment, architectural fees, and all other 
necessary costs incidental to such work (together, the “Project”) 
constitutes a legal obligation of the District and is necessary to assure 
the health and safety of the students and staff of the District.  The District 
is hereby authorized to undertake the Project. 


      Section 3. The Board of Education hereby grants its approval of the 
Project and authorizes the expenditure of an amount therefore, 
including preliminary costs and costs incidental thereto, not to exceed 
the estimated maximum cost of $300,000, and said amount is hereby 
appropriated therefore.   


      Section 4. The Project constitutes emergency repairs and the cost of 
the Project is deemed an emergency ordinary contingent expense of the 
District.  Funds shall be transferred from the District’s General Fund to 
the Capital Fund and all costs related to the Project will be paid out of 
the Capital Fund.  


      Section 5. The Superintendent, or his designee, is hereby authorized 
to take the necessary legal steps to undertake the Project and is further 







October 14, 2014                    41 
 


authorized to execute and deliver any documents and to take such other 
action as may be necessary and proper to carry out the intent and 
provisions hereof. 


 Section 6. This Resolution shall take effect immediately. 
 
6g. 2015-16 BUDGET CALENDAR Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon the recommendation of 


the Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law, approves 
to adopt the Budget Calendar for the 2015-2016 school year. 


 
6h. BASIC FINANCIAL STMT. Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the  
MANAGEMENT LETTER AND Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law, accepts the  
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN Basic Financial Statements, Management Letter and Corrective Action  
FOR YEAR ENDING 6/30/14 Plan for the year ending June 30, 2014. 
 
6i. EIGHTH GRADE HONOR’S Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the 


Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law, approves the 
Middle School Honor’s trip to New York, New York on April 30 – May 3, 
2015 with transportation and security provided by Port Bay Travel, a 
private busing company.  The trip will be supervised by Crystal Weigand, 
Shannon MacRae, Melissa Minichiello and Betsy Smith with support of 
approximately 15 parent chaperones. The cost of theatre tickets will be 
supported through the Arts in Education program. 


 
6j. APPROVE STUDENT  Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the  
ACTIVITY CLUB Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law approves the  
SPEAK OUT CLUB creation of the Speak Out Club at the High School.   
 Be it further resolved that Amy Wiktorowicz  be appointed the volunteer 


advisor for this club, effective October 15, 2014. 
 
6k. DONATION TO DISTRICT Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the 


Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law accepts the 
donation of one boat trailer and one 3/75 hp power washer from Dale 
VanVechten, 1615 Clover St, Rochester, NY 14618.  The total value of the 
donated equipment is $200.00. 


 
6l1. LTR OF RESIGNATION Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the  
KELLY SMART Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law accepts the 


resignation from Kelly Smart as a Registered Nurse, effective with the 
close of business on October 31, 2014. 


 
6l2. LTR OF RESIGNATION Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the  
LISA HUMBERT Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law accepts the 


resignation from Lisa Humbert as a Registered Nurse, effective at the 
close of business on November 7, 2014. 


 
6l3. LTR. OF RESIGNATION Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the  
BRIAN LAVALLEY  Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law accepts the  
MUSICAL SET CONSTRUCTION resignation of Brian LaValley from the co-curricular position of Musical 


Set Construction effective September 1, 2014. 
 
  







October 14, 2014                    42 
 


6l4. PERMANENT APPT. Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the  
DUSTIN WILLIAMS Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law approves the 


permanent appointment of Dustin Williams as a 
Maintenance/Groundsman effective October 23, 2014. 


 
6l5 APPT SPL ED TEACHER Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the  
LINDSAY FITTER Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law, approves the 


three year probationary appointment of Lindsay Fitter, conditional upon 
a criminal history record check according to Commissioners Regulation 
§80 1.11 and Part 87 as follows: 
Certification:  Initial SWD Gr. 1-6 
Tenure Area:  Special Education  
Probationary Period: September 24, 014 – September 23, 2017 
Salary: Step A, $40,000 
 


6l6. APPT. SCHOOL COUNSELOR Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the  
AMY BERESFORD Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law, approves the 


three year probationary appointment of Amy Beresford, conditional 
upon a criminal history record check according to Commissioners 
Regulation §80 1.11 and Part 87 as follows: 
Certification:  Provisional School Counselor  
Tenure Area:  School Counseling & Guidance 
Probationary Period: October 20, 2014 – October 19, 2017 
Salary: Step F $43,256 
 


6l7. APPT. CLERK/TYPIST Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the  
CHELSEY PALMER Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law, approves the 


26 week probationary appointment of Chelsey Palmer as a Clerk/Typist, 
conditional upon a criminal history record check according to 
Commissioners Regulation §80 1.11 and Part 87 for 7.5 hrs./day, 
$10.50/hr., 12 mo./yr.  for a total estimated annual salary of $20,554 
prorated to start date of September 22, 2014. 


 
6l8. APPT. BUS DRIVER Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the  
IRMS REED Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law, approves the 


26 week probationary appointment of Irma Reed, conditional upon a 
criminal history record check according to Commissioners Regulation 
§80 1.11 and Part 87 for approximately 5.75 hrs./day, $14.78/hr., 10 
mo./yr. for an estimated total annual salary of $15,892 prorated to start 
date of October 6 2014. 


 
6l9. APPT. LIFEGUARDS Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the 


Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law approves the 
following individuals as Lifeguards and Water Safety Instructors 
effective September 20, 2014: 
Gabrielle Bailey Lifeguard  $8.75/hr. 
Taylor Ellis  Lifeguard  $8.75/hr. 
Adam Keagle  Lifeguard  $8.75/hr. 
Sara Meyers  Lifeguard  $8.75/hr. 
Erin Ferrente Lifeguard/WSI  $9.50/hr. 
 


  







October 14, 2014                    43 
 


6l10. APPT REC. ATTENDANTS Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the  
KAYLA VIRTS Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law approves the 


appointment of Kayla Virts as a Recreation Attendant at $8.75/hr. 
effective September 20, 2014. 


 
LEO VETTER Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the 


Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law approves the 
appointment of Leo Vetter as a Recreation Attendant at $8.75/hr. 
effective September 20, 2014. 


 
6l11. CO-CURRICULAR APPT. Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the 


Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law approves the 
following co-curricular appointment for the 2014-15 school year. 


 Michael Witkiewitz Musical-Business Advisor $700 
 
6l12. APPROVE CURRICULUM Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the  
WRITING Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law approves the 


following individuals to participate in curriculum writing workshops for 
2 hours/week at $25.00/hr. for the 2014-15 school year and to be paid 
from the Math Partnership Grant:        


 Diana Schultz    Betsy Smith      Erin Pitcher     Ashleigh Gerstner    Megan Lown 
 
7. INFORMATION ITEMS The following information was shared with the Board:   
 Claims Auditor Reports, The Advocate 
 
ADJOURNMENT Danny Snyder moved and Judi Bucklaew seconded the following motion.  


It passed with a unanimous vote. J. Boogaard, J. Buckalew, L. Collier, E. 
Magin, A. Mathes, D. Snyder voted yes. 


 
 Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the 


Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law approves the 
adjournment of the meeting at 8:39 PM. 


 
 
 
 
     ___________________________________________________ 
     Clerk of the Board of Education  








October 15, 2014                    44 
 


NORTH ROSE-WOLCOTT CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 


 OCTOBER 15, 2014 6:30 PM      CONFERENCE ROOM OF THE DISTRICT SCHOOL 
 


PRESENT: Judi Buckalew, John Boogaard, Lucinda Collier, Edward Magin, Andrew 
Mathes, Danny Snyder, Izetta Younglove 


 
 Scott Bischoping, Superintendent, Wayne Finger-Lakes BOCES, Marla 


Iverson, Asst. Superintendent for School Improvement, Wayne Finger-
Lakes BOCES, Quinn  Morris, Director of Human Resources, Wayne 
Finger-Lakes BOCES 


  
CALL TO ORDER President, Edward Magin called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM and led 


the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 


1a.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA Danny Snyder moved and Lucinda Collier seconded the following 
motion.  It passed with a unanimous vote. J. Buckalew, L. Collier, E. 
Magin, A. Mathes, D. Snyder, I. Younglove voted yes. 


 
 Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the 


Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law, approves the 
agenda of October 15, 2014. 


 
1b. EXECUTIVE SESSION Andrew Mathes and Judi Buckalew seconded the following motion.  It 


passed with a unanimous vote. J. Boogaard, J. Buckalew, L. Collier, E. 
Magin, A. Mathes, D. Snyder, I. Younglove voted yes. 


 
 Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the 


Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law approves 
Executive Session at 6:31 PM for the specific purpose of discussing 
candidates for the position of Superintendent of Schools. 


 
 Edward Magin left the meeting at 7:33 PM. 
 
REGULAR SESSION The meeting returned to regular session at 8:14 PM. 
 
ADJOURNMENT Izetta Younglove moved and John Boogaard seconded the following 


motion.  It passed with a unanimous vote. J. Boogaard, J. Buckalew, L. 
Collier, A. Mathes, D. Snyder, I. Younglove voted yes. 


 
 Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the 


Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to Education Law approves the 
adjournment of the meeting at 8:15 PM. 


 
 
 
     ___________________________________________________ 
     Clerk of the Board of Education  





